McHENRY PUBLIC
M LIBRARY DISTRICT

WISDOM - KNOWLEDGE « DREAMS

I1.

II1.

IVv.

VI

VIIL.

VIIIL.

McHenry Public Library District
Board of Library Trustees Regular Meeting

Tuesday, April 17,2018
7:00 p.m.
2" Floor Board Room

Agenda

CALL TO ORDER - Kathy Beaderstadt, President
ROLL CALL - Monica Leccese, Secretary
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
CORRECTIONS OR ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA
PUBLIC COMMENT AND RECOGNITION OF VISISTORS

CONSENT AGENDA FOR THIS MEETING (Action)

SECRETARY'S REPORT - Monica Leccese, Secretary
Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting, March 27, 2018

TREASURER'S REPORT - Delphine Grala, Treasurer
Monthly Financial Statements and Interim Check Report through
March 31, 2018 and Bill Reports for March/April 2018
Additional Bills (Distributed night of meeting)

Petty Cash and Credit Card Reports

COMMUNICATIONS

s  Email communication — from J. Scholtz to patron 4/4/2018
s  Email to Doug Martin — from J. Scholtz 4/2/2018
s  Various emails and letters from patrons related to MPLD trustee opening

LIBRARIAN'S REPORT



IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION
To discuss the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance or
dismissal of specific employees of the public body in compliance with the Open Meetings
Act 5 ILCS 120/2 section 2(c¢)(1).

X. OLD BUSINESS
L.

XI. NEW BUSINESS

1. Discussion of FY18/19 budget cycle, expectations, projects + updates.

2. Discussion concerning obtaining new board members, approval of letters,
questionnaire and other documents + timeline and search structure. (discussion/
direction to staff)

3. Approval to close Library early on Tues., July 3% 2018 at S5pm for July 4™ holiday
{Action)

3. 1™ reading of newly proposed Finance Policy (discussion, possible Action)

4. Approval of mobile hotspot circulation policy (discussion, possible Action)

5. Showcase Google Docs and Intranet for board members

XII. ANY AND ALL OTHER BUSINESS THAT MAY PROPERLY
COME BEFORE THE BOARD

XIII. ADJOURNMENT

Any person with a physical disability may contact the MPLD (815-385-0036) within 4 hours
of any meeting date to request special access to any board meeting. The MPLD will make all
board meetings accessible to people with physical disabilities under the current ADA
requirements.



Date:
Time:

MINUTES
MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES
REGULAR MEETING

March 27, 2018
7:00 P.M,

Location: Library Board Meeting Room

L.

Il

IIL.

IV.

VL.

Call to Order:
President Beaderstadt called the meeting to order at 7:04 p.m.

Roll Call:

Roll was called and a quorum was established.

Members Present: Kathy Beaderstadt, Delphine Grala, Monica Leccese, Charles Reilly,
Bradley Schubert, Jill Stone

Members Absent: Margaret Carey

Also Present: James Scholtz, Executive Director; Bill Edminster, Assistant Director; Zach
Terrill, Adult Services Assistant Manager

Pledge of Allegiance

Corrections or Additions to the Agenda
Scholtz asked that the discussion of the patron behavior policy in Old Business be considered
first to accommodate Zach Terrill.

Public Comment and Recognition of Visitors
See Corrections or Additions to the Agenda

Consent Agenda for this meeting

Secretary's Report — Monica Leccese, Secretary

Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting, February 20, 2018

Treasurer’s Report — Delphine Grala, Treasurer

Monthly Financial Statements and Interim Check Report through February 28, 2018
Invoice Reports for February/March 2018

Additional Invoices (Distributed night of meeting)

Petty Cash and Credit Card Reports

The Board reviewed the regular board minutes, financial statements and monthly invoices.
Grala asked about the 8040-300 Operating Fund Gifts budget line and Scholtz explained that
although it is in a list of Operating Fund budget lines in the financials, it does not have a
budget amount since it is money donated to the library and spent for memorial purchases.
Grala also asked about the 8795-100 Miscellaneous (FH) budget line and Scholtz explained
that it was money that came from the Fines for F.1.S.H. campaign, where patrons’ fine
revenue from a two-week period is donated to the F.1.S.H. Food Pantry. Scholtz pointed out
that the library cannot legally make a charitable donation using taxpayers’ money. Scholtz
responded to a question from Schubert from the last Board meeting, informing him that the
over/short line was noticeably high in February because some items had been miscoded.



VIIL

VIIL

Reilly moved and Leccese seconded a motion to approve the minutes of the regular meeting
for February 20, 2018, the monthly financial statements for the fiscal year through February
28, 2018, the Invoice Reports for January/February 2018, and payment of the invoices.
Ayes: Beaderstadt, Grala, Leccese, Reilly, Schubert, Stone

Nays: None

Abstain: None

Absent: Carey

Motion Passed

Communications

The Board reviewed the Communications.

o Dana Deiderich to B. Edminster—donation from American Legion Auxiliary

» B. Edminster to American Legion Auxiliary—thank you

¢ Susan Buchholz to B. Edminster—donation in memory of Robin Fossum Weber

¢ B. Edminster to Susan Buchholz—thank you and notice of books purchased

¢ B. Edminster to Mr. Jay Weber—notice of books donated in memory of Robin Fossum
Weber

Librarian's Report

The Board reviewed the Librarian’s Report

1. The go-live date for Polaris, the library’s new ILS, is April 17, 2018.

2. New security gates, self-check stations, and automated material handling system using
RFID will be installed by mk Solutions during the week of May 7-11,

3. Scholtz delivered the money collected during our half-price fines campaign to the F.1.S.H.
Food Pantry.

4. Staff represented the library at the Business Expo.

The library’s St Baldrick’s team raised money for research into preventing childhood

cancer by getting their heads shaved. Events in the library and t-shirt sales raised money

for local families with children with cancer to defray medical expenses.

6. Scholtz pointed out that library traffic has increased though circulation has not.

7. Edminster reported that blizzards in Philadelphia prevented him from going to the Public
Library Association Conference in Philadelphia and that he just spent an afternoon at
Denver Airport waiting in line at United Customer Service.

8. Scholtz reported that the library has arranged an IMRF service audit to identify our
anticipated debt. We are required to carry out the audit every three years. The auditors will
conduct the audit in the new fiscal year.

9, Scholtz contacted Carbonless, the company that installed our solar panels, asking about
our solar credits, We received $3,200 and will receive $1,500 every six to eight months
for seven or eight years.

10. Scholtz reported that he and IT had hired CCB to inventory our IT set-up and make
suggestions based on best practices in order to improve our performance and meet all
standards.

11. The library will replace the video projectors in the meeting rooms.

12. Scholtz informed the Board about a stolen check, which was altered from about $2,000 to
$122,000. Our bank questioned the amount and the check did not clear. Torgersen
received a phone call trying to get us to honor the check. We are working with the bank’s
fraud department and have filed a police report.

13. Moving to Polaris for our ILS requires that we change our credit card vendor for
transactions with the public to the company Comprise.

14. We will be adding a vending machine with healthier choices in the café area of the library.

e

2



IX.

15. A neighbor whose child requires a special school bus that cannot be used on public streets
asked if they could use our parking lot for the bus when it comes at 7 a.m. and Edminster
approved that use.

16. Scholtz is on a Chamber of Commerce committee planning Beach Day on a Sunday
during Fiesta Days. The library will have several people participating and will sponsor a
face-painting booth.

17. Scholtz proposed certificates of appreciation for Barb Majka and Kathy Milfajt for their
efforts implementing the Polaris and RFID migrations.

Executive Session

To discuss the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance or dismissal
of specific employees of the public body in compliance with the Open Meetings Act 5 ILCS
120/2 section 2(c)(1).

Grala moved and Schubert seconded a motion to go into executive session at 8:23 p.m. to
discuss the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, pesformance or dismissal of
specific employees of the public body in compliance with the Open Meetings Act 5 ILCS
120/2 section 2(c)(1) and review and release of the June 20, 2017 Executive Session Minutes.
Ayes: Beaderstadt, Grala, Leccese, Reilly, Schubert, Stone

Nays: None

Abstain: None

Absent: Carey

Motion Passed

No action was taken.

Reilly moved and Grala seconded a motion to come out of executive session at 8:47 p.m.
Ayes: Beaderstadt, Grala, Leccese, Reilly, Schubert, Stone

Nays: None

Abstain: None

Absent: Carey

Motion Passed

Old Business

1. Discussion of patron behavior policy—possible changes (poss. Action)
Terrill reviewed the changes made to the old policy, highlighting the addition of a bullet
list of examples of disruptive behavior that staff can show to the patron concerned.
Beaderstadt asked that a phrase such as “and other forms of vandalism” be added to the
list of examples. Stone asked about how the policy addressed cellphone use and Terrill
responded that this is not a major problem once public services staff ask patrons to lower
their voices. Terrill said that training, both formal and informal, about how to respond to
disruptive behavior goes on constantly. Grala asked whether the three-strike model
applied to minors as well as for adults and Scholtz said that it was.
Reilly moved and Schubert seconded a motion to approve the new policy on Rules for
Patron Behavior/Disruptive Behavior”
Ayes: Beaderstadt, Grala, Leccese, Reilly, Schubert, Stone
Nays: None
Abstain: None
Absent: Carey
Motion Passed



XL

XIL

XIIL

New Business

1. Discussion of FY18/19 budget cycle, expectations, projects + updates
Scholtz reported during the Librarians Report that he is working on the budget. We have
one dollar more in income than last year.

2. Discussion concerning obtaining new board members
Scholtz spoke about a letter and questionnaire he developed for the Board. Grala said that
the letter should be briefer and that much of the information should be in added
documents, perhaps as a FAQ with eight or ten of the most commonly asked questions.
The Board agreed that a prospective Board member primarily wanted to know what would
be expected or required of them.
Board members asked that advance notice of the opening on the Board should appear in
the Preface, on posters in the library, and on the library’s Facebook page.

Any and All Other Business That May Properly Come Before the Board

e Schubert inquired whether the Board would consider supporting him in participating in
the Leadership Greater McHenry County program. The Board asked that he come to the
next meeting with more details about the cost and the benefits of the program.

* Stone asked about the Little Free Libraries program she had asked Scholtz to investigate.

Adjournment

Stone moved and Grala seconded a motion to adjourn the meeting at 9:13 p.m.
Ayes: Beaderstadt, Grala, Leccese, Reilly Schubert, Stone

Nays: None

Abstain: None

Absent: Carey

Motion Passed

Respectfully Submitted,

Monica Leccese, Secretary



MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT

COMPILED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2018



McHenry Public Library District

Balance Sheet
As of March 31, 2018

ASSETS

Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1080 - First Midwest Bank-Money Market
1060100 - MM - General - First Midwest
1060200 - MM - Spec Reserve-First Midwest
1060300 - MM - Grant & Gift-First Midwest
Total 1060 - First Midwest Bank-Money Market
1070100 - HSA/Building - First Midwest
1615100 - General Account - First Midwest
1625100 - Payroll Account - First Midwest
1635100 - Imprest Account - First Midwest
1045100 - PROPAY
Total Checking/Savings
Other Current Assets
1005100 - Petty Cash
1500200 - Due from General Fund
Total Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabllities
Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities
2500100 - Due to Special Reserve Fund
Total Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity
3010100 - Fund Balance - General
3010200 - Fund Balahce - Special Reserve
3010300 - Fund Balance - Grants & Gifts
NetIncome
Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

315 PM

04/11/2018
Cash Basis
Mar 31, 18

311,632.65
1,457,916.58
447,733.63

2,217,282.86
351,650.91
53,657.05
154,015.06
3,526.01
5,382.56

2,785,513.44

800.00
550,000.00

550,800.00

3,336,313.44

3,336,313.44

550,000.00

650,000.00

550,000.00

550,000.00

1,456,371.20
1,748,470.21
437,630.23
-856,158.20

2,786,313.44

3,336,313.44

Page 1 of 1



McHenry Public Library District 4:32 PM
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures  o4/11/2018
March 2018 Cash Basis
Mar 18
Income
6030100 - Interest Income - General 18.76
6030200 - Interest Income - Spec Reserve 46.37
6030300 : Interest Income - Grant & Gifts 13.25
6050100 - Fines 4,466.69
6060100 - Photocopier & Fax income 1,169.52
6070300 - General Fund Gifis 109.12
6105100 - Cobra/Retiree Insurance Pmts 1,953.04
6120100 : Meeting Room Fees 80.00
6130100 - Misc Incom -General(Sales/Fees) 449.00
6150100 - Lost & Damged Materials 474.63
6170300 - Per Capita Grant 32,628.34
6200100 - Over/Short {2.50)
Total Income 41,406.22
Gross Profit 41,406.22
Expense
8010100 . Aduit Books 5,680.96
8020100 . Youth Books 2,536.90
8028100 - Administrative Resources {GA) 29.99
8030100 - Magazines & Newspapers {106.99)
8040300 - Operating Fund Gifts 1,213.43
8050100 - Adult AV Materials 2,295.51
8060100 - Youth AV Materials 519.04
8080100 - Video Games 1,168.06
8090100 - eBook & eMagazine Services 2,456.64
8095100 - Electonic Subscriptions 5,136.59
8120100 . Library Supplies 31.26
8130100 - Tech Services Supplies 452.25
8140100 - Adult Programs & Supplies 670.53
8145100 . Circulation Supplies 467.73
8147100 - Summer Reading Club 1,409.37
8150100 - Youth Programs & Supplies 911.62
8215100 . Collection Agency Fees 89.50
8245100 - Comp/OfcEqp/CopierRepairs/Contr 9,318.92
8310100 - CCS & Polaris Expenses 6,667.41
8320100 : Network Expenses 941.32
8410100 . Payroll Exp, Acctg & Audit Serv 2,023.24
8540100 - Postage 64.75
8550100 - Public Relations/Promotions 62.33
8610100 - Electricity {3,120.00)
8630100 - Telephone & Internet Services 1,747.00
8740100 - Building & Grounds 4,235.56

Page 1 of 2



8760100 .
8770100 -
8800311 -
8910100 -
8920100 -
8930100 -
8940100 -
8960100 -
8970100 -
8980100 -
9080100 -
9090100 -

Hospitality

Interlibrary Loan Fees & Losses
Adult Materials - PER CAPITA

Salaries

FICA/Medicare

IMRF

Health & Life Insurance
Memberships & Dues

Travel

Meetings & Training

Small Equipment Under $250
Additional Capital Projects

Total Expense

Net Income

Mar18

360.45
59.94
201.33
129,861.54
9,428.44
15,237.22
34,682.99
335.86
651.79
855.48
205.98
6,987.00
245,870.94

204,464.72

Page 2 of 2



McHenry Public Library District 3:22 PM
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures by Class 04/11/2018
July 2017 through March 2018 Cash Basis
100 General 200 Special 300 Grant and Gift
Fund Reserve Fund Fund TOTAL
Income
6010100 - Property Taxes 1,544,216.62 0.00 0.00 1,544,216.62
6020200 - Developer Fees 0.00 58,576.00 0.00 58,576.00
6030100 - Interest income - General 495.87 0.00 0.00 49587
6030200 - Interest Income - Spec Reserve 0.00 398.67 0.00 398.67
6030300 - Interest Income - Grant & Gifts 0.00 0.00 128.93 128.93
6035100 - Dividends 96.00 0.00 0.00 96.00
6040100 - Nonresident/Enhanced Cards 665.00 0.00 0.00 665.00
6050100 - Fines 41,115.38 0.00 0.00 41,115.38
6055100 - Referral/Collection Fees 170.00 0.00 0.00 170.00
6060100 - Photocopier & Fax Income 11,006.35 0.00 0.00 11,006.35
6070200 - Reserve Fund Gifts 0.00 275 0.00 275
6070300 - General Fund Gifts 2.06 0.00 1,163.08 1,165.14
6105100 - Cobra/Retiree Insurance Pmis 11,714.11 0.00 0.00 11,714.11
6110100 - Program Fees/Misc Fees 2,160.00 0.00 0.00 2,160.00
6120100 - Meeting Room Fees 645.00 0.00 0.00 645.00
6130100 . Misc Incom -General(Sales/Fees) 3,493.87 0.00 0.00 3,493.87
6150100 . Lost & Damged Materials 3,004.73 0.00 0.00 3,004.73
6170300 - Per Capita Grant 0.00 0.00 32,628.34 32,628.34
6200100 - Qver/Short 11.19 0.00 0.00 11.19
Total Income 1,618,796.18 58,977.42 33,920.35 1,711,693.95
Gross Profit 1,618,796.18 58,977.42 33,920.35 1,711,693.95
Expense
80170100 - Adult Books 60,091.13 0.00 0.00 60,091.13
8020100 - Youth Books 30,816.36 0.00 0.00 30,616.36
8025100 - Professional Resources 4,806.35 0.00 0.00 4,806.35
8028100 - Administrative Resources {GA) 209.93 0.00 0.00 209.93
8030100 - Magazines & Newspapers 13,371.00 0.00 0.00 13,371.00
8040300 - Operating Fund Gifts 279.36 0.00 18,145.53 18,424.89
8050100 - Adult AV Materials 26,842.29 0.00 0.00 26,842.29
8060100 - Youth AV Materials 6,377.32 0.00 0.00 6,377.32
8080100 - Video Games 8,060.57 0.00 0.00 8,060.57
8090100 - eBook & eMagazine Services 27,458.92 0.00 0.00 27,458.92
8095100 - Electonic Subscriptions 52,611.77 0.00 0.00 52,611.77
8120100 - Library Supplies 4,179.82 0.00 0.00 4,179.82
8130100 - Tech Services Supplies 14,526.31 0.00 0.00 14,526.31
8140100 - Adult Programs & Supplies 12,137.04 0.00 0.00 12,137.04
8145100 - Circulation Supplies 559.53 0.00 0.00 55953
8147100 - Summer Reading Club 1,787.89 0.00 0.00 1,787.89
8150100 - Youth Programs & Supplies 16,217.53 0.00 0.00 16,217.53
8215100 . Collection Agency Fees 877.10 0.00 0.00 877.10
8245100 - Comp/OfcEqp/CopierRepairs/Contr 45,345.72 0.00 0.00 45,345.72
8310100 - CCS & Polaris Expenses 48,408.06 0.00 0.00 48,408.06
8320100 - Network Expenses 13,970.00 0.00 0.00 13,970.00
8330100 - OCLC Services (cataloging) 11,598.83 0.00 0.00 11,598.83
8410100 - Payroll Exp, Acctg & Audit Serv 18,468.59 0.00 0.00 18,468.59
8420100 - Legal Services 517.00 0.00 0.00 517.00
8430100 - Automation & Misc Consultants 1,635.00 0.00 0.00 1,635.00
8510100 - Printing 21,944.69 0.00 0.00 21,944.89
8530100 - Public Notices & Ads 1,279.20 0.00 0.00 1,279.20
8540100 - Postage 7,566.38 0.00 0.00 7.566.38
8550100 - Public Relations/Promotions 3,356.70 0.00 0.00 3,356.70
8610100 - Electricity 12,194.12 0.00 0.00 12,194.12 Page 1 of 2



8620100
8630100 -
8640100 -
8720100 -
8730100 -
8740100 -
8760100 -
8770100 -
8795100 -
- Adult Materials - PER CAPITA
8910100 -
8920100 -
8930100 -
8940100 -
8950100 -
8960100 -
8970100 -
8980100 -
9060100 -
9070100 .
9080100 -
2090100 -

8800311

Gas

Telephone & Internet Services
Water & Sewer

Building/Auto Insurance
Bonding & Officers Liability
Building & Grounds

Hospitality

Interlibrary Loan Fees & Losses
Miscellaneous (FH)

Salaries

FICA/Medicare

IMRF

Health & Life Insurance
Tuition Reimbursement
Memberships & Dues
Travel

Meetings & Training
Library Furnishings
Library Equipment

Small Equipment Under $250
Additional Capital Projects

Total Expense

Net Income

100 General 200 Special 300 Grant and Gift
Fund Reserve Fund Fund TOTAL

1,562.36 0.00 0.00 1,562.36
6,386.74 0.00 0.00 6,386.74
5,362.68 0.00 0.00 5,362.68
22,996.00 0.00 0.00  22,996.00
5,554.00 0.00 0.00 5,554.00
38,206.74 0.00 0.00  38,206.74
4,819.81 0.00 0.00 4,819.81

292 54 0.00 0.00 292.54
3,995.00 0.00 0.00 3,995.00
0.00 0.00 5,671.42 5,671.42
1,252,434.17 0.00 0.00 1,252,43417
91,159.97 0.00 0.00  91,159.97
142,294 63 0.00 0.00  142,294.63
301,286.52 0.00 0.00 301,28652
2,032.18 0.00 0.00 2,032.18
2,696.16 0.00 0.00 2,696.16
2,711.53 0.00 0.00 2,711.53
3,342.77 0.00 0.00 3,342.77
1,367.07 0.00 0.00 1,367.07
329.52 0.00 0.00 329.52
1,225.40 0.00 0.00 1,225.40
186,684.90 0.00 0.00 186,684.90
2,544,035.20 0.00 23,816.95 2567,852.15
(925,239.02) 58,977.42 10,103.40  (856,158.20)

Page 2 of 2



McHenry Public Library District 3:23 PM
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures Budget vs. Actual 04/11/2018
July 2017 through March 2018 Cash Basis

Jul 17 - Mar 18 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budsﬁt__
Income
6010100 - Property Taxes 1,544,216.62 3,180,653.29  (1,636,436.67) 48.55%
6020200 - Developer Fees 58,576.00 58,000.00 576.00 100.99%
6030100 - Interest Income - General 495.87 5,000.00 (4,504.13) 9.92%
6030200 - Interest Income - Spec Reserve 398.67 3,000.00 (2,601.33) 13.29%
6030300 - Interest Income - Grant & Gifts 128.93 2,500.00 (2,371.07) 5.16%
6035100 - Dividends 96.00 500.00 (404.00) 19.2%
6040100 - Nonresident/Enhanced Cards 665.00 1,000.00 (335.00) 66.5%
6050100 - Fines 41,115.38 55,000.00 (13,884.62} 74.76%
6055100 - Referral/Collection Fees 170.00 1,000.00 (830.00) 17.0%
6060100 - Photocopier & Fax income 11,006.35 17,000.00 {(5,993.65) 64.74%
6070200 - Reserve Fund Gifts 2.75 25,000.00 (24,997.25) 0.01%
6070300 - General Fund Gifts 1,165.14 20,000.00 {18,834.88) 5.83%
6090100 - Annexation Impact Fees 0.00 8,000.00 (8,000.00) 0.0%
6090200 - Transfer from General Fund 0.00 500,000.00 (500,000.00) 0.0%
6105100 - Cobra/Retiree Insurance Pmts 11,714.11 13,500.00 (1,785.89) 86.77%
6110100 - Program Fees/Misc Fees 2,160.00 4,200.00 (2,040.00) 51.43%
6120100 - Meeting Room Fees 645.00 1,000.00 (355.00) 64.5%
6130100 - Misc Incom -General(Sales/Fees 3,493.87 25,000.00 (21,506.13} 13.98%
6130200 - Misc Income - Special Reserve 0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 0.0%
6150100 - Lost & Damged Materials 3,004.73 6,000.00 (2,995.27) 50.08%
6170300 - Per Capita Grant 32,628.34 84,893.43 {(52,265.09) 38.43%
6200100 - Over/Short 11.19 0.00 11.19 100.0%
6210300 - Miscellaneous Grants 0.00 50,000.00 (50,000.00) 0.0%
Total Income 1,711,693.95 4,063,246.72 (2,351,552.77) 42.13%
Gross Profit 1,711,693.95 4,063,246.72 (2,351,552.77) 42.13%
Expense
8010100 - Aduit Books 60,091.13 94,000.00 (33,908.87) 63.93%
8020100 - Youth Books 30,616.36 58,000.00 (28,383.64) 51.89%
8025100 - Professional Rescurces 4,808.35 5,500.00 (693.65) 87.39%
8028100 - Administrative Resources (GA) 209.93 6,000.00 (5,790.07) 3.5%
8030100 - Magazines & Newspapers 13,371.00 15,000.00 (1,629.00) 89.14%
8040300 . Operating Fund Gifts 18,424.89 448,381.10 (429,956.21) 4.11%
8050100 . Adult AV Materials 26,842.29 53,000.00 (26,157.71} 50.65%
8060100 - Youth AV Materials 6,377.32 15,000.00 (8,622.68) 42.52%
8080100 - Video Games 8,080.57 12,500.00 (4,439.43) 64.49%
8090100 - eBook & eMagazine Services 27,458.92 55,500.00 {28,041.08) 49.48%
8095100 - Electonic Subscriptions 52,611.77 80,000.00 (27,388.23) 65.77%
8110100 - Bank Service Charges 0.00 200.00 (200.00) 0.0%
8120100 . Library Supplies 4,179.82 10,000.00 (5,820.18) 41.8%
8130100 - Tech Services Supplies 14,526.31 57,200.00 (42,673.69) 265.4%
8135100 - Bindery 0.00 150.00 (150.00) 0.0%
8140100 - Adult Programs & Supplies 12,137.04 18,500.00 (6,362.96) 65.61%
8145100 - Circulation Supplies 559.53 25,000.00 (24,440.47) 2.24%
8147100 - Summer Reading Club 1,787.89 7,000.00 (5,212.11) 25.54%
8150100 - Youth Programs & Supplies 16,217.53 21,500.00 (5,282.47) 75.43%
8215100 - Collection Agency Fees 877.10 1,500.00 (622.90) 58.47%
8245100 - Comp/OfcEqp/CopierRepairs/Cc 45,345.72 59,000.00 (13,654.28) 76.86%
8260100 - Misc Contracted Services 0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 0.0%
8270100 - Finance/Late Fee Charges 0.00 500.00 {500.00) 0.0%
8310100 - CCS & Polaris Expenses 48,408.06 75,000.00 (26,591.94) 64.54%
8320100 - Network Expenses 13,970.00 25,000.00 (11,030.00} 55.88%
8330100 - OCLC Services (cataloging) 11,598.83  10,000.00 1,598.83 115.99% Page1of2



8410100 -
8420100 .
8430100 -
8440100 -
8510100 -
8530100 -
8540100 -
8550100 -
8610100 -
8620100 -
8630100 -
8640100 -
8720100 -
8730100 -
8740100 -
8760100 -
8770100 -
8795100 -
8800300 -
+ Adult Materials - PER CAPITA
8910100 .
8920100 .
8930100 .
8940100 -
8950100 -
8960100 -
8970100 -
8980100 -
9030300 -
9050200 .
9060100 -
9070100 -
9080100 -
9090100 -
9100100 .

8800311

Payroll Exp, Acctg & Audit Serv
Legal Services

Automation & Misc Consultants
In Service Honorarium

Printing

Public Notices & Ads

Postage

Public Relations/Promotions
Electricity

Gas

Telephone & Internet Services
Water & Sewer

Building/Auto Insurance
Bonding & Officers Liability
Building & Grounds

Hospitality

Interlibrary Loan Fees & Losses
Misceilaneous (FH)

Per Capita Grant expense for FY

Salaries

FICA/Medicare

IMRF

Health & Life Insurance
Tuition Reimbursement
Memberships & Dues
Travel

Meetings & Training

Misc Grants

Library District Act

Library Furnishings
Library EqQuipment

Small Equipment Under $250
Additional Capital Projects
Transfer to Reserve Fund

Total Expense

Net Income

Jul ‘17 - Mar 18 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budg_?t_
18,468.59 22,000.00 {3,531.41) 83.95%
517.00 1,500.00 (983.00) 34.47%
1,635.00 5,000.00 (3,365.00) 32.7%
0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.0%
21,944.69 34,000.00 (12,055.31} 64.54%
1,279.20 3,000.00 (1,720.80} 42.64%
7,566.38 14,000.00 (6,433.62) 54.05%
3,356.70 8,500.00 (5,143.30) 39.49%
12,194.12 25,000.00 {12,805.88) 48.78%
1,562.36 3,500.00 (1,937.64) 44.64%
6,386.74 10,500.00 (4,113.26) 60.83%
5,362.68 5,400.00 (37.32) 99.31%
22,996.00 31,500.00 (8,504.00) 73.0%
5,554.00 5,500.00 54.00 100.98%
38,206.74 54,000.00 (15,793.26) 70.75%
4,819.81 10,000.00 (5,180.19) 48.2%
292.54 700.00 (407.486) 41.79%
3,895.00 4,000.00 {5.00) 99.88%
0.00 32,628.34 (32,628.34) 0.0%
5,671.42 0.00 5,671.42 100.0%
1,252,434.17 1,815,000.00 (562,565.83) 69.01%
91,159.97 140,000.00 (48,840.03) 65.11%
142,294.63 200,000.00 (57,705.37) 71.15%
301,286.52 360,000.00 (58,713.48) 83.69%
2,032.18 6,000.00 (3,967.82) 33.87%
2,696.16 8,000.00 (5,303.84) 33.7%
2,711.53 9,000.00 (6,288.47) 30.13%
3,342.77 5,000.00 (1,657.23) 66.86%
0.00 25,000.00 (25,000.00) 0.0%
0.00 150,000.00 {150,000.00) 0.0%
1,367.07 © 35,000.00 (33,632.93) 3.91%
329.52 70,000.00 (69,670.48) 0.47%
1,225.40 10,000.00 (8,774.60) 12.25%
186,6684.90 400,000.00 (213,315.10} 46.67%
0.00 500,000.00 (500,000.00) 0.0%
2,567,852.15 5,161,159.44 (2,593,307.29) 49.75%
(856,158.20) (1,097,912.72) 241,754.52 77.98%

Page 2 of 2



McHenry Public Library District

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures Budget vs. Actual
July 1, 2017- March 31, 2018 - General Fund

Income

6010100 -
6030100 -
6035100 -
6040100 -
6050100 -
6055100 -
6060100 -
6070300 -
6090100 -
6105100 -
6110100 -
6120100 -
6130100 -
6150100 -
6200100 -
Total Income

Gross Profit
Expense

8010100 -
8020100 -
8025100 -
8028100 -
8030100 -
8040300 -
8050100 -
8060100 -
8080100 -
8090100 .
8095100 .
8110100 .
8120100 -
8130100 .
8135100
8140100 -
8145100 .
8147100 .
8150100 .
8215100 -
8245100 -
8260100 -
8270100 -
8310100
8320100 -
8330100 -
8410100 -
8420100 .
8430100 .
8440100 .
8510100 .
8530100 .
8540100 -
8550100 -

Property Taxes

Interest Income - General
Dividends .
Nonresident/Enhanced Cards
Fines

Referral/Collection Fees
Photocopier & Fax Income
General Fund Gifts
Annexation Impact Fees
Cobra/Retiree Insurance Pmts
Program Fees/Misc Fees
Meeting Room Fees

Misc Incom -General{Sales/Fees)
Lost & Damged Materials
Over/Short

Adult Books

Youth Books

Professional Resources
Administrative Resources (GA)
Magazines & Newspapers
Operating Fund Gifts

Adult AV Materials

Youth AV Materials

Videc Games

eBook & eMagazine Services
Electonic Subscriptions

Bank Service Charges

Library Supplies

Tech Services Supplies
Bindery

Adult Programs & Supplies
Circulation Supplies

Summer Reading Club

Youth Programs & Supplies
Collection Agency Fees
Comp/OfcEqp/CopierRepairs/Con
Misc Contracted Services
Finance/Late Fee Charges
CCS & Polaris Expenses
Network Expenses

OCLC Services (cataloging)
Payroll Exp, Acctg & Audit Serv
Legal Services

Automation & Misc Consultants
In Service Honorarium

Printing

Public Notices & Ads

Postage

Public Relations/Promotions

4:00 PM

04/11/2018

Cash Basis

Jul '17 - Mar 18 Budgel $ Over Budget % of Budget
1,644,216.62 3,180,653.29 (1,636,436.67) 48.55%
495.87 5,000.00 (4,504.13) 9.92%
96.00 500.00 (404.00) 19.2%
665.00 1,000.00 (335.00) 66.5%
41,115.38 55,000.00 (13,884.62} 74.76%
170.00 1,000.00 (830.00) 17.0%
11,006.35 17,000.00 {5,993.85) 64.74%
2.06
0.00 8,000.00 (8,000.00) 0.0%
11,7141 13,500.00 (1,785.89) 86.77%
2,160.00 4.200.00 (2,040.00) 51.43%
645.00 1,000.00 (355.00) 64.5%
3,493.87 25,000.00 (21,506.13) 13.98%
3,004.73 6,000.00 (2,995.27) 50.08%
11.19 0.00 11.19 100.0%
1.618,796.18 3,317,853.20 (1,699,057.11) 48.79%
1,618,796.18 3,317,853.29 (1,699,057.11) 48.79%
60,091.13 94,000.00 (33,908.87) 63.93%
30.616.36 59,000.00 (28,383.64) 51.89%
4,806.35 5,500.00 (693.65) 87.39%
209.93 6,000.00 (5,790.07) 3.5%
13,371.00 15,000.00 (1,629.00) 89.14%
279.36

26,842.29 53,000.00 (26,157.71) 50.65%
6,377.32 15,000.00 (8,622.68) 42.52%
8,060.57 12,500.00 (4,439.43} 64.49%
27,458.92 55,500.00 (28,041.08) 49.48%
52,611.77 80,000.00 (27,388.23) 65.77%
0.00 200.00 {200.00) 0.0%
4,179.82 10,000.00 (5,820.18) 41.8%
14,526.31 57,200.00 (42,673.69) 25.4%
0.00 150.00 (150.00) 0.0%
12,137.04 18,500.00 (6,362.96) 65.61%
559.53 25,000.00 (24,440.47) 2.24%
1,787.89 7.000.00 (5,212,11) 25.54%
16,217.53 21,500.00 (5,282.47) 75.43%
§77.10 1,500.00 (622.90) 58.47%
45,345.72 59,000.00 (13,654.28) 76.86%
0.00 2,000.00 {2,000.00) 0.0%

0.00 500.00 (500.00) 0.0%
48,408.06 75,000.00 (26,591.94) 64.54%
13,970.00 25,000.00 (11,030.00) 55.88%
11,598.83 10,000.00 1,508.83 115.99%
18,468.59 22,000.00 (3,531.41) 83.95%
517.00 1,500.00 (983.00) 34.47%
1,635.00 5,000.00 (3,365.00) 32.7%
0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.0%
21,944.69 34,000.00 (12,055.31) 64.54%
1,279.20 3,000.00 (1,720.80) 42.64%
7,566.38 14,000.00 (6,433.62) 54.05%
3,356.70 8,500.00 (5,143.30) 39.49%

Page 1 of 2



8610100 -
8620100 -
8630100 -
8640100 -
8720100 -
8730100 -
8740100 -
8760100 -
8770100 -
8795100 -
8910100 -
8920100 -
8930100 -
8940100 -
8950100 -
- Memberships & Dues
8970100 -
8980100 -
9060100 -
9070100 -
9080100 -
9090100 -
9100100 -

8960100

Electricity

Gas

Telephone & Internet Services
Water & Sewer

Building/Auto Insurance
Bonding & Officers Liability
Building & Grounds
Hospitality

Interlibrary Loan Fees & Losses
Miscellaneous {FH)

Salaries

FICA/Medicare

IMRF

Health & Life Insurance
Tuition Reimbursement

Travel

Meetings & Training

Library Furnishings

Library Equipment

Small Equipment Under $250
Additional Capital Projects
Transfer to Reserve Fund

Total Expense

Net Income

Jul 17 - Mar 18 Budget  $ Over Budget % of Budget
12,194.12 257)%.00 (12,805.88) 48.78%
1,662.36 3,500.00 (1,937.64) 44.64%
6,386.74 10,500.00 (4,113.26) 60.83%
5,362.68 5,400.00 (37.32) 99.31%
22,996.00 31,500.00 (8,504.00) 73.0%
5,554.00 5,500.00 54.00 100.98%
38,206.74 54,000.00 (15,793.26) 70.75%
4,819.81 10,000.00 {5,180.19) 48.2%
292.54 700.00 (407 .46) 41.78%
3,995.00 4,000.00 {5.00) 99.88%
1,252,434.17  1,815,000.00 (562,565.83) 69.01%
91,159.97 140,000.00 (48,840.03) 65.11%
142,294.63 200,000.00 (57,705.37) 71.15%
301,286.52 360,000.00 (58,713.48) 83.69%
2,032.18 6,000.00 (3,967.82) 33.87%
2,696.16 8,000.00 (5,303.84} 33.7%
2,711.563 8,000.00 (6,288.47) 30.13%
3,342.77 5,000.00 {1,657.23) 66.86%
1,367.07 35,000.00 (33,632.93) 3.91%
329.52 70,000.00 (69,670.48) 0.47%
1,225.40 10,000.00 (8,774.60) 12.25%
186,684.90 400,000.00 (213,315.10) 46.67%
0.00 500,000.00 {(500,000.00) 0.0%
2,544,035.20 4,505,150.00 (1,961,114.80) 56.47%
(925,239.02) (1,187,296.71} 262,057.69 77.93%

Page 2 of 2



McHenry Public Library District

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures Budget vs. Actual

July 1, 2017 - March 31, 2018 -Special Reserve Fund

Income

6020200 -
6030200 -
6070200 -
6090200 -
- Misc Income - Spacis| Reserve
Total Income

6130200

Gross Profit
Expense

9050200 -

Developer Fees

Interest Income - Spec Reserve
Reserve Fund Gifts

Transfer from General Fund

Library District Act

Total Expense

Net income

3:28 PM
04/11/2018
Cash Basis

Jul'17 - Mar 18  Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
58,576.00 58,000.00 576.00 100.99%
398.67  3,000.00 {2,601.33) 13.29%
275 25,000.00 (24,997.25) 0.01%
0.00 500,000.00 {500,000.00) 0.0%
0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 0.0%
58,877.42 588,000.00 (529,022.58) 10.03%
58,977.42 588,000.00 (529,022.58) 10.03%
0.00 150,000.00 (150,000.00) 0.0%
0.00 150,000.00 (150,000.00) 0.0%
58,977.42 438,000.00 (379,022.58) 13.47%

Page 1 of 1



McHenry Public Library District 3:29 PM
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures Budget vs. Actual 04/11/2018
July 1, 2017 - March 31, 2018 - Grant and Gift Fund Cash Basis
Jul '17 - Mar 18 Bidget $ Over Budg_;et % of Bunget
Income
6030300 - Interest Income - Grant & Gifts 128.93 2,500.00 (2,371.07) 5.16%
6070300 - General Fund Gifts 1,163.08 20,000.00 {18,836.92) 5.82%
6170300 - Per Capita Grant 32,628.34 84,893.43 {52,265.09) 38.43%
6210300 - Miscellaneous Grants 0.00 50,000.00 (50,000.00) 0.0%
Total Income 33,820.35 157,393.43 (123,473.08) 21.55%
Gross Profit 33,820.35 157,393.43 {123,473.08) 21.55%
Expense
8040300 - Operating Fund Gifts 18,145.53  448,381.10 {430,235.57) 4.05%
8800300 - Per Capita Grant expense for FY 0.00 32,628.34 (32,628.34) 0.0%
8800311 - Adult Materials - PER CAPITA 5,671.42 0.00 5,671.42 100.0%
9030300 - Misc Grants 0.00 25,000.00 {25,000.00) 0.0%
Total Expense ' 23,816.95 506,008.44 (482,192.49) 4.71%
Net Income 10,103.40 (348,616.01) 358,719.41 (2.9%)

Page 1 of 1



McHenry Public Library District
LIBRARIAN’S REPORT
March 2018

Administration

Last day for AARP tax help at MPLD, advertised as 4/12 but really 4/5. We don’t have
stats yet for people served/how it affected library services but we will have them soon.
We hope to host AARP again in 2019 but it will probably be in a different room.

| want to commend the entire staff for their fantastic work on our migration from
SirsiDynix to Polaris!! Everyone, in every Dept. did fantastic work to make it a success.
[n the next 2 months, we will be showcasing it to the public — show them how it works!!
Contract signed with Healthy Vending to provide 1 drink/snack combo unit in main floor
vending area for staff/patrons (5/1/2018 effective)

J. Scholtz worked on a new Financial/Investment Policy.

J. Scholtz visited the new Garden Quarter youth facility and the new Ignite teen center to
discuss how the organizations might interact together. YS Dept. already works with the
Garden Quarter (4/4)

J. Scholtz updated/re-worked prospective trustee letter and questionnaire relative to
Board inquiry.

P. Torgersen worked on obtaining and coordinating our electronic payments/vendors
from Polaris (we'll be using Comprise/TSYS with Polaris, webpay + Nayax — with RFID
self-checks, card swipe/cellular connection). Great work!!

J. Scholtz worked on budget prep. ~ all items into County Clerk’s office for initial
FY2018-19 budget.

B. Edminster planned to attend the Public Library Association Conference 3/21-24 but a
blizzard in Philadelphia caused in two cancelled planes before he was told that he
couldn’t get to PLA before it ended.

B Edminster attended a presentation by Midwest Tape at CCS on ordering their
materials through Polaris Acquisition module, 3/26.

B. Edminster and L. Jakacki met for her 9-month goals evaluation and a sync-up
meeting, 4/5. Sync-ups were otherwise suspended until after Polaris Go Live on 4/17.
B. Edminster represented the Library at the Character Counts Coalition meeting, 4/12.
B. Edminster led the Classic Book Discussion of Bleak House by Charles Dickens, 4/16.

Adult Services

Building Services

Circulation/ILL

S. Willis reports a total of 159 expired holds pulled in March



M. DelSanto worked booth @ Business Expo 3/10, did a fantastic job representing
MPLD!!

B. Majka attended Manager's Meeting 3/13

L. Horist attended In-service meeting 3/16

L. Horist attended Polaris Leap training 3/20, 3/21

B. Majka attended Public Services Managers Meeting 3/27

Human Resources

» Page position (15 hours/week) approved for Circulation. Delayed recruiting until after
Polaris implementation.

* Viewed product demo w/ Business Manager by a potential HRIS/payroll vendor.

e Received invitation/link for 2018 Library Survey; gathered preliminary data.

o Average Salary increase for the Last 3 months — 3.0%

= This average calculation is missing data from two (2) employees whose
salary increase has not yet been submitted.

o Average Salary increase for the FY 2017-2018 (year-to-date) — 2.45%

= This average calculation is missing data from four (4) employees whose
salary increases have not yet been submitted.

o Other Fiscal YTD notes: a) two employees did not receive an increase due to
performance; b) two employees have received iump-sum merit payments vs. an
increase to their base salary

» Counseled a couple of supervisors on performance and/or attendance issues.

+ Contacted Management Association to obtain legal advice on potential ADA issue.

+ Working with Broker & seeking price quotes from potential EAP (Employee Assistance
Program) vendors. Current need not being met & determined not par with other libraries
given lack of offering benefit.

» Planning employee appreciation activities for the week of Polaris implementation.

* Attended Stateline SHRM on 3/08; presentation was “Healing Burnout: Recognizing the
Warning Signs”

¢ Attended Manager's Meeting (3/13)

+ Participated in webinar regarding “Creating Positive Work Culture” (3/14)

* Attended full-day seminar on “Total Responsible Organizations” offered by Management
Association (3/15)

+ Participated in In-Service Committee meeting (3/16) .

» Attended WINGS Chamber luncheon — presentation on “Leadership” (3/21)

+ Participated in webinar regarding “Making an HR Technology Change” (3/28)

* Met with J.Scholtz and Vantage Point/One Digital representative on 4/3 to discuss
options for renewal of health insurance.

Public Relations

» Coordinated the library’s presence at the Chamber's annual Business Expo on March
10. Thanks to Jim, Mariann Cairo and Maryann Del Santo for helping man the booth and



interact with patrons. Our focus was on promoting the new “Libby” app from OverDrive —
an easier method of downloading eBooks.

Met with Nikki Cogswell from Youth Services to go over Facebook posting guidelines,
tips and tricks. So far Nikki has done a great job of creating interesting posts for her
dept.

Finalized customization of our new online catalog working with web developers on
branding, navigation, etc.

Created patron materials for rollout of new catalog — posters, handouts, bookmarks.
Publicized new catalog on social media, in e-newsletter, press release and on website.
Began contacting area businesses for Summer Reading coupons.

Began designing Summer Reading print materials — school handouts, book logs, etc.
Sent out two e-newsletters featuring library news and upcoming events.

Updated website as needed;

Promoted upcoming programs via various media.

Helped with monthly staff birthday celebration — purchased treats and set them up.
Attended Chamber luncheon/program with Sue and Patti on March 21.

Attended Dept. Heads meeting March 13.

Attended Sunshine Committee meeting March 5.

Technical Services

The department continues to prepare for the cutover to Polaris, scheduled for 4/17/18. K.
Kimbrel, D. Lavin and K. Milfajt tested data on the Polaris test server in over 800 items
this month to verify that our data has migrated properly. K. Milfajt reported over a dozen
instances where the data did not migrate properly to have the issue resolved before we
go live.

Circulation and Technical Services have tagged over 12,000 items for RFID, bringing our
total up to 30% of the collection tagged.

K. Milfajt attended the Reports Training session at CCS, 3/1

K. Milfajt participated in the Collection Development Committee meeting, 3/6

K. Milfajt represented MPLD at the CCS Catalog and Metadata Management meeting,
317

K. Milfajt worked with B. Edminster to learn ordering from Baker & Taylor, 3/7

K. Kimbrel and D. Lavin participated in Session 1 of Polaris Client Training for
Catalogers, led by K. Milfajt, 3/8

K. Milfajt facilitated the Contemporary Book Group discussion of Once We Were
Brothers by Ronald H. Balson, 3/12

K. Walker moderated the Dungeons and Dragons program, 3/13

K. Milfajt participated in the MPLD Management Team meeting, 3/13

K. Kimbrel and D. Lavin participated in Session 2 of Polaris Client Training for
Catalogers, led by K. Milfajt, 3/14

K. Walker participated in the MPLD In-Service Committee meeting, 3/16

K. Kimbrel, D. Lavin, K. Meadows, P. Radic and K. Walker participated in the MPLD
Technical Services Department meeting, facilitated by K. Milfajt, 3/20



K. Kimbrel and D. Lavin participated in Session 3 of Polaris Client Training for
Catalogers, led by K. Milfajt 3/21

K. Kimbrel and K. Milfajt participated in Polaris Acquisitions Training, 3/27-3/28
K. Milfajt participated in Polaris Serials Training, 3/29

Technology

IT has been working diligently on various tickets revolving around making Polaris work —
installing printer drivers, upgrading workstations, etc. Much work will be needed on 4/17
and they will be in at 7am.

Lots of tickets regarding TBS printing and scanner — TBS calied to service.
Contract with CCB for tech infra-structure review/recommendations/best practices (May).

Review of AV needs (projector/sound system, etc.). We will be purchasing new AV
equipment in June relative to assessment of needs.

IT updated public computers
IT closed 122 tickets
IT has been testing out the new Wi-Fi hotspots

Youth Services

Afterschool snack program: Supper: 83 kids, 23 adults, 72 meals served

N. Cogswell is now the voice of the YS department on the library’s Facebook page. She
varies her posts from program promotion to booklists on current pop culture topics. The
patrons are enjoying her posts based on the fact that most of them have received likes!
M. Cairo assisted in manning the library’s booth at the McHenry Business Expo. The
expo brings many families out and the kids enjoy seeing a familiar face. Everyone knows
Mariann in town!

K. Storlie staffed the booth at Hilltop’s Kindergarten round-up. The evening is for families
with children starting kindergarten next school year. Many families took library
information and were given the chance to sign up for a library card.

Learning goes both ways in storytimes. A young child with difficulty speaking has been
teaching K. Gerold some basic sign language signs so the two can communicate. The
child is in the Music Makers program and the songs they are learning has helped the
child become clearer in speaking and reinforces his speech therapy.

J. Velasquez has started a T.A.G. en espariol (teen advisory group). She has had a few
teens attend and they have had great ideas on how to outreach to Hispanic families and
kids. They want to continue to honor their culture in our Spanish language programs.
They have also helped in more immediate ways like creating displays in our Youth
Spanish book collection.

G.Doolan continues to host our annual Spring Bingo program. Families can win baskets
full of treats and egg dying supplies or the grand prize of a holiday ham. Many families
say this program has become an annual tradition.

E. Wyant has made some changes to the Teen area shelving. Using the space created
from the Teen CD collection, which was merged with Adult CDs, she was able to spread



out the very popular Manga collection and create a better visual of the teen new book
collection.

e C. Bergan meet with D. Anderson, librarian from Harrison School, about ways to help get
a library card in each student’s hand. |deas like putting a library card opt-in form in the
school registration packet and/or intergovernmental agreements were some ideas that
C. Bergan came back with. Will work to set up a meeting with C. Bergan, B. Majka, J.
Scholtz and myself to see if any of these ideas are something we can move forward on.

o L. Jakacki has been working with other Managers to communicate with staff about the
Go Live Schedule of Polaris. Also, assisting in the PowerPac set-up, notice testing, and
learning about how the acquisitions module will change selector ordering and
acquisitions set-up for the department.

Statistics and Highlights Narrative

Legend — ABk — Adult Books; JBk — Children's Books; PBK — Paperback Books; AudBk — Audic books;
JAudBk — Children’s Audio bocks; ILL — Interlibrary loan; Vid/DVD - Videos/DVDs; JVid/DVD — Children’s
Videos/DVDs; Oth - Other

The TS Dept. has been very busy RFID tagging; along with the Circ. Dept. but even with those
extra duties TS managed to add (-17%) and withdraw (+16%) items compared with last yr./mon.
Lots of staff time in TS and Circ. Was directed toward configuring and training in Polaris. Staff
is doing a fantastic job in learning new skills for Polaris Go Live date 4/17 job!! QOverall holds
increased by (+2%). Note that when we migrate to Polaris, materials will automatically be
renewed 1 time. Overall circulation came in at 44,516 compared to 45,869 - a (-2% diff). Ave.
circulation per day was 1535 compared to 1684 but we were open for the same number of days
- 29. ILL borrowing was (+3%); lending was (-9%, due to Polaris migration).

Patron traffic was down a bit (-2%) to 15,296 from 15,537!! Also our eMagazine/Zinio was at (-
4%) with digital downloads (-3%) and Zinio (-4%). Inet use increased +12%) but wireless use
declined (-38%). AARP will continue to use the Children’s Storytime room until April 4. This is a
really valuable service and we need to figure out a way to translate this use into increased
library use/circulation. Program attend: (Ad — 32%; YS +26%). Mtg Rm use (-49%); study
room use (+9%}; school class visits (+31%); Child Prog. Attend {-34%, 2395 compared to
3,629).

AARP tax prep had another successful year at MPLD (3™ year?). Here are stats from
questionnaire:

85 total questionnaires returned — unknown # of tax returns prepared. 1) 82% of respondents
said this was NOT their 1% visit to MPLD.

2) Butit was equally divided between MPLD cardholders and non-cardholders (45%/47%).
However, due to inconsistent responses on other questions, it was very clear that people don't
understand to whom they pay taxes to support their library — some Johnsburg and Nippersink
patrons think that the MPLD is part of the same disfrict.

3) 20% of people coming into the Library checked out materials when they came in; a few did
other things like copies/computer use, some responded Tax Help.

4) most people (73%) planned to return to the library but it was unclear if this return would be
for tax prep next year. Perhaps the question(s) need to be re-worded to provide more
clarification? Or we need to ask some different questions.



Overall, the responses were consistent with responses from the previous years but we did not
receive as many responses this year — I'm not sure how many tax returns were prepared or total
of people served.

| also want to thank our TS and Circ. Dept. Hds and staff — in terms of managing 2 large
projects — so far, everything is going smoothly with RFID conversion and with Polaris
switchover/training. Also, the Maintenance staff has been great — D. Harding has done a
superb job in crafting the AMH box, working with mk Solutions for install, working with local
electricians (Associated Electric). Thanks so much!!

Upcoming Events and Projects
* New online catalog “go live” date is 4/17/2018
» RFID self-checks/AMH unit delivered and installed, go live in May 7? RFID tagging
continues, Circ/TS. New tagging stations ordered.
» Nat'l. Library Week 4/8-14/2018
¢ FY2018/19 budget worksheets will go out to Dept. Managers due date 5/11.
e 3-year cycle for liability and health insurance starts, so we’ll be seeking information/bids from
vendors.
» Fiesta Days in July — MPLD participating in ‘Beach Day’ 7/15.
» Magitek Solar 101 program 4/25 — thanks to K. Lambert for advertising and Ad. Ser. For
doing display!!
e Summer Reading Program kickoff is June 1
* Reaching Forward Library Conference, 5/4. Some MPLD staff attending/planning.
* B. Edminster working to get pricing on CPR/AED staff training in-house, maybe include First
Aid.
e 11 New mobile Inet hotspots received, circulation policy forthcoming (great job in ordering
through Tech Soup - thanks IT Dept.!1)
* Library will close early on July 3" (Tues., 5pm) observing July 4™ (Wed., closed) pending
Board approval



4/5/2018 Mchenrylibrary.org Mail - Fwd: New submission from 'Contact Us'!

MeHEHRY FUBLIC

LIBRARY BISTRICT J. Scholtz <jscholtz@mchenrylibrary.org>

WSO (A~ KNGWREDEE - DEEAN S

Fwd: New submission from 'Contact Us"!

McHenry PLD Reference <mpiref@mchenrylibrary.org>
To: "J. Scholtz" <jscholtz@mchenrylibrary.org>, "L. Jakacki" <ljakacki@mchenrylibrary.org>

--—-—---- Forwarded message -~

From: Mchenry Public Library <webmaster@mchenrylibrary.org>
Date: Wed, Apr 4, 2018 at 8:24 AM

Subject: New submission from 'Ceontact Us'|

To: mpiref@mchennylibrary.org

You have a new submission.

Name
Valerie

Phone Number
8476687936

Email Address
val7936@yahoo.com

| have a...
Question

Your Message
Is there a plan to build a larger children's area in the library? If yes, how far out is that plan?

Aduit Reference Desk
McHenry Pubiic Library District
815-385-0036
mplref@mchenrylibrary.org

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=853dd3795a&jsver=HcM5jMu2nSY.en. &view=pt& msg=16290ef50df9acbb&search=inbox&siml=16290ef50dMaebt

Wed, Apr4, 2018 at 8:53 AM

1M



4{5/2018 Mchenrylibrary.org Mail - Your question concermning larger children's dept.

J. Scholiz <jscholtz@mchenrylibrary.org>

| T BN WEDEE - DEEAMT

Your question concerning larger children’s dept.

J. Scholtz <jscholtz@mchenrylibrary.org> Wed, Apr 4, 2018 at 10:14 AM

To: val7936@yahoo.com

Dear Valerie, Thank you for your question regarding building a larger children’s area in the library. Back in 2009, we did a partial remodel project of the entire
library because we needed to do something to the interior to make it more modemn and we had a failed referendum. We did a $3 mil. renovation for $1 million
under budget. Right now, we're involved in 2 big projects - moving to a new computer system and security/checkout system which will make checking things out,
both at home and here much faster and easier. We still need to replace our existing carpeting in the main library and in the admin areas (it's been there since
19891} In our sirategic/long-range plan, we still have either the building of a new library {on the same grounds) OR the building of an annex/addition which would
including a new/larger and updated children's area, an outdoor reading garden, after-hours access to ocur meeting rooms and other amenities. As of right now, we
don't have any architectural plans. We are trying to save about $200,000 to $500,000 per year for this project but the cost will probably be close to $6 million, so we
don't have enough saved at this time. I'd like to have a lower-ceiling children’s separate children's dept. with updated play/learning area, + a separate area for the
YA's with computer areas for each within their separate areas. I'd also like to have some 3D printers, learning labs, etc. for the olderyouth + study rooms, seating
so that parents/children could read quietly together, etc. If you have any ideas about funding or what you'd like to see in such an area, please feel free to contact
me directly. The big problem with the McHenry area right now is taxesfincome - everyone wants less taxes but improved services - we at MPLD are trying to

accommodate both of those needs Jim S.

4/5/2018 Mchenrylibrary.org Mail - Your question concerning larger children's dept.

J. Scholtz <jscholtz@mchenrylibrary.org>

I i1 381 - VAL T - D AN

Your question concerning larger children's dept.

Val Korstanje <val7936@yahoo.com> Wed, Apr 4, 2018 at 7:24 PM
To: "J. Scholtz" <jscholtz@mchenrylibrary.org>

James,

i truely appreciate you taking the time to write back so quickly! I'm trying to think of ways to raise money for the library. Maybe the library could host a community
fun q.:_._w And .:_m proceeds could go to improvements in the YA and children’s area to support the youth in the Mchenry community. Just throwing that out there. I'll
continue to think of other ways | could support the library as it is an important place in the community that my family and | come to every week.

Best regards,
Val Korstanje

Sent from Yahoo Mail for iPhone
[Quoted text hidden]



4/5/2018 Mchenrylibrary.org Mail - Zagster Bike Program - MPLD participation

MoHEARY BLUBLEC
1/BRARY DETRICT
MOONRCRLEDE- DIEARG

J. Schelfz <jscholtz@mchenrylibrary.org>

Zagster Bike Program - MPLD participation

J. Scholtz <jscholtz@mchenrylibrary.org> Mon, Apr 2, 2018 at 12:47 PM
To: Doug Martin <dmartin@ci.mchenry.il.us>

Hi Doug, 1 hope you and your family had a great Easter. We ate at the new DC Cobbs in McHenry Sat. and it was better than the original in Woedstock - great
service too!l [I've spoken to the MPLD board about the Library's participation in the Zagster Bike share program and, while they think it is a great idea for the City,
they feel it is cost-prohibitive for the Library to be involved because it doesn't really 'sell' or project the Library and its' services - even if a Zagster bike station were
o be set up on Library property - especially when the sponsoring organization doesn't receive any revenue from the service and it is a 2-year commitment., $18K
for 5 bikes over 2 years - that's basically $3600 per bike for limited advertising and no revenue. I'd love to help the City out but | think we'll need to find another
avenue to do that. Thank you for allowing me to present this information and concept to the Board, however. | hope that we can find ways to partner and grow
together and advance McHenry as a destination peint in the future. Jim S.

"Yesterday's wisdom, Today's knowledge, Tomorrow's dreams"

James Scheltz

Executive Direclor

McHenry Public Library District

809 N Front Street

McHenry, IL 60050-5578

V: 815-385-0036; 331-425-9481 cell
F: 815-385-7085
jscholtz@mchenrylibrary.org

https.//mail.google.com/mailfu/0/?ui=2&k=853dd3795a&jsver=HcM5jMu2nSY.en. &view=pt&msg=16287785cb359582&search=inbax&siml=16287785cb 359582 M



N7

I McHenry Public Library District

McHENRY $09 N. Front St.
PUBLIC McHenry, IL 60050
LIBRARY 815.385.0036; FAX 815.385.7085
DISTRICT

MEMO

TO: MPLD Board of Trustees

FROM: Jim Scholtz, Executive Director, MPLD

RE: Mobile Hotspot Circulation Policy Recommendations

DATE: 4/17/2018

The IT Dept. has purchased, through Tech Soup, 11 mobile Internet hotspots for the Library to Circulate
to library cardholders. Many other libraries in the area already circulate hotspots like these units with
great success and to the great pleasure of library patrons — so we are a bit late to hop on the band-wagon.
The Management Team has approved the following Circulation rules for the hotspots and seeks Board
approval to circulate the devices under this new policy. Circulation of these units will begin when TS can
integrate them into the collection relative to establishing new policies in Polaris.

Hotspot Circulation Recommendations:

21 day loan period (probably automatic renewal due to CCS/Polaris policy)

Holdable for MPLD cardholders only

$1.00 daily overdue fine

Maximum of $70 fine

Replacement costs: $50 for device, $10 for case, $10 for charger. Staff will turn off WiFi

connection remotely for long overdue devices when billing to patron occurs.

* The hotspots will be checked out by patrons at the Questions Desk and must be returned at the
Questions Desk. A $10 fine will be charged if unit (bag) is place in the outside or inside materials
drop.

s Mobile hotspot units will be circulated in the MPLD identified bags previously housing the Nook

units.

Policy approved/not approved by the Board on

Yes No Abstain




1|Page

Newly Proposed Finance Policy (4/18/2018)

The McHenry Public Library District (hereafter called the MPLD or the Library) has adopted this
finance policy to clarify various budgeting and accounting principles and schedules within its’
finance and budgeting structure that are not specifically denoted in 75 ILCS 16/30-65 -16/35-40.

Role of Budgeting Related to Fiscal Year and Strategic/Long Range Plan

The Long Range plan should dictate the direction and focus of spending for the budget within
any year — meaning that various projects, capital expenditures, personnel costs, equipment
upgrades, etc. should be planned for and budgeted in-kind. A list of anticipated major capital
expenditures and personnel expenditures should be presented with every FY budget so the
budget can have some ‘target’ points of achievement.

Financial Management

The Library’s fiscal year (FY) shall be from July 1st to June 30". Financial resources are
ultimately the responsibility of the Board of Trustees, who elect a Treasurer but give the day-to-
day responsibility of fiscal operations/bill paying to the Executive Director who in tum gives
direction to the Business Manager. The Board shall do the following:

Have a clear plan for acquisition and sustainability of financial resources to pay for programs,
services, technology and staff that follow the goals/objectives outlined in the strategic plan;

Monitor and evaluate the financial plans and guidelines of the Library to ensure its’ financial
integrity, providing optimum benefit for the taxpayers

Make sure that fiscal management is checked by an approved accounting firm and that an
annual audit is conducted per ILCS code and GSAB requirements, including retirement (IMRF).

Budget

Each year, typically in March/April, an annual operating budget shall be prepared by the
Executive Director under the supervision/knowledge of the Board. Within this context, the
MPLD Board typically operates as a Committee of the Whole but can authorize either a
‘standing’ or ‘free’ committee to work with the Director on the budget. Typically, the Executive
Director uses fiscal information from the previous year's budget, as well as information from the
last 2-3 months of bills/financial statements as a starting point. The McHenry County Clerk’s
Office provides various information regarding the PTELL, total tax amount to be received (Levy
Confirmation and $ Projection for Extension), calendar of distributions (from 1-15 + final
settlement sheet) and other documents — some of which must be signed and returned to the
Clerk’s office by the Director. The Director also seeks program/equipment/supplies information
from all Dept. Hds. Working with the Business Manager, the Director provides a working budget
showing last year's actual spending; this year's appropriation, levy and actual.

All dates of preparation/passage are denoted in the ILCS and are accomplished by Ordinance,
with publication and hearings where appropriate and dictated. All documents are FOIA-able.



2|pPage

The MPLD follows a strict budget and associated timeline for publishing/adopting the budget
that falls within a FY April — October timeframe.

Levy and Appropriation

The Levy and Appropriation are part of the overall budget process. According to the ILCS, the
MPLD falls under a tax-capping law called the (PTELL) — lllinois Property Tax Extension
Limitation Law. This means that, each year, the Library is limited to a maximum property tax
increase less than or equal to the amount of the Consumer Price Index from the year prior (or
5%, whichever is less). The Levy and Appropriation are part of the overall budget sequence of
documents regulated by the ILCS, requiring public hearings, publication in the largest
newspaper of circulation and other requirements based upon the amount of increase/request.
The budget can be amended by Board vote in three (3) events:

The Library enters into contracts that were not included in the approved budget;

The Library proposes a major expenditure that was not included in the approved budget. Most
often, this expenditure is the result of a catastrophe such as a flood, fire, tornado, etc.

Significant unanticipated revenues are received (such as a major gift, establishment of a TIF
District, new residents, new annexed property, etc.) or expenses are higher than projected.

Emergency Expenditures

The Executive Director is authorized to approve any expenditures necessary for the day-to-day
operations of the Library as long as they fall within the parameters of the current, approved FY
budget (approved by the Board of Trustees and Ordinance). But there are times — emergencies
and other contingency instances — that require a disbursement of funds not defined/budgeted
within the parameters of the current budget. An emergency is defined as ‘an unforeseen event
that threatens the safety of the public, staff, building or vehicles/equipment. Dollar limits are as
follows:

Executive Director - $5,000; Board/Board President - $5,000.

Use of this emergency fund is subject to the approval of the Board President but approval may
happen after-the-fact in cases of dire emergency when the Board President cannot be reached.
Note that any expenditure above the $10,000 (total) amount must be approved by the Board in
advance, either in a special or regular meeting. Expenditures above $25,000 must be put out
for bid as per ILCS, except for special instances such as choosing architects or engineers.
Whenever, possible, competitive price quotes should be obtained, even if bidding is NOT
required by law.

Measurement/Reporting, Focus, Basis of Accounting and Presentation

The accounting system used by the MPLD shall utilized generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) that are required by reguiatory agencies for governmental units. GASB is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. The Library hires a Business Manager who utilizes various approved accounting



3|Page

methods/software to perform daily accounting, bill paying and reporting. As a normal course of
events, bills are paid monthly before/on the 3™ Tuesday of every month — the Board meeting
falls on the 3" Tues. All checks require 2 signatures. Bills, monthly accounting statements,
balance sheets and other financial documents are checked by the Business Manager in
association with our accounting firm each month. As a normal course of events, the Library
Board approves all bills once a month during the board meeting as part of a Consent agenda.
Any bill may be pulled from the consent agenda to be discussed separately. The Library uses a
cash system basis for daily reporting but the accounting firm reports, balance sheets and other
documents use a modified accrual basis - (meaning that revenues are recognized when
susceptible to accrual, i.e. ‘measurable and available’). This is due to the fact that expenditures
often exceed our income from month-to-month because of the calendar-flow of income receipts.
The accounting practices and procedures used by the Library shall allow for adequate
management of revenues and expenditures as well as providing adequate monitoring and
checks/balances by the Board of Trustees and outside accountants/auditors. “Measureable”
means the amount of the transactions can be determined and ‘available” means collectible
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities for the current period. As a
normal course of events, expenditures are recorded [i.e. entered via Quickbooks] when the fund
liability is incurred. Income is recorded in similar fashion as some income (such as fines/fees)
accumulates daily/monthly and other income (such as interest, property tax revenue and grant
monies} occurs quarterly or at irregular intervals. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as
revenue when the qualifying elements and expenditures have been met/incurred.

Funds and Fund Balances

The MPLD is committed to responsible accounting of all public funds and that those funds are
expended on providing library services to the community. In a given fiscal year, the Board
makes every effort to use funds as budgeted and any excess funds will be classified in the
manner determined by this policy.

Fund Balances (revenue minus expenditures) will be classified into one of five (5) categories as
described below, Although not inclusive, Fund Balances may be used for cash flow
requirements, projected building and grounds maintenance and improvement needs, projected
technology requirements, special projects and other purposes to insure a fully operational
library. The division of these funds will be decided upon and approved by the Board as part of
the annual budget process.

Nonspendable Fund Balance — amounts that are not in a spendable form (such as inventory
and pre-paid expenses) or are required to be maintained intact.

Restricted Fund Balance — amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as
grantors, bondholders, higher levels of government) or by enabling legislation.

Committed Fund Balance — amounts constrained to specific purposes by formal action of the
Library Board of Trustees. These amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the
Library Board of Trustees takes the same action to remove or change the constraint.




4lpPage

Assigned Fund Balance — amounts the Library intends to use for a specific purpose. The
authority to assign these fund balances is designated to the Executive Director with input from
the Assistant Director and the Business Manager.

Unassigned Fund Balance — amounts that are not any of the above and are available and
expendable for any General Fund purpose. It is recommended that, from the Total Fund
Balance, the Library will set aside a minimum fund balance (reserves) of 30% to 50% of the
previous year's total final actual expenditures. This amount will be placed (assigned) in the
Special Reserve/Building Fund.

The Library will spend the most restrictive fund balances first and in the following order:

1. Restricted; 2. Committed; 3. Assigned; 4. Unassigned. Committed fund balances will
be designated by formal action by the Library Board. Assigned fund balances can be
designated by the Executive Director with approval from the Library Board. Unassigned fund
balances are available and expendable for any library purpose but usually, with the full
knowledge and approval of the Library Board, before use.

Each fiscal year, for presentation to the Library Board, and coinciding with the presentation of
the annual budget, the Executive Director, Business Manager and Board Treasurer will prepare
a status report of the Fund Balances along with the annual budget and associated documents.

Special/Reserve Fund

The Library maintains a working capital reserve, known as the Special/Reserve Fund in
accordance with 75 ILCS 16/40-50

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

The accounts of the Library are organized and operated on the basis of assigned funds —
revenues and expenditures. The Library maintains 3 funds (General, Grant & Gift,
Reserve/Building Fund). Within those 3 funds the operating budget — both revenues and
expenditures are delineated annually and further divided into smaller accounts. Fund
accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used to aid
management in demonstrating compliance with finance-related legal and contractual provisions.
At the close of the fiscal year, the Library Board may authorize the transfer of any and all excess
monies from the General Operating Fund to the Special Reserve Fund. The amount of the
transfer shall be determined by examining the amounts left over in the other two (2) funds,
determining remaining expenditures and considering future building/expansion plans. As a
general rule, if the ‘aggregate/remainder amount’ in the two funds is greater than/equal to 40%
of last year's total budget, a transfer to the Special Reserve Fund is an option.

Financial Reports and Audits

Throughout any fiscal year, the Library manufactures various financial reports for monthly board
meetings. As per 75 ILCS 16/30-65, the Library outsources an annual fiscal audit for the fiscal
calendar year just ended (July 1 — June 30) from an independent entity other than its’
accounting firm. The Executive Director, Business Manager and Treasurer are involved in audit



5|_Page_

preparation and approval and the audit is formally adopted via Board action. The scope of the
audit shall be determined by the Board and the independent auditor from year-to-year,
dependent upon fiscal focus, previous deficiencies, new laws or concerns and other factors. As
a normal course of events at monthly board meetings, the fiscal documents include, but are not
limited to the following items: Balance sheet of all funds: complete list of bills with
vendors/amounts and credit card bill list.

Disbursements and Checks

Disbursements for each month are approved at each Board meeting before checks are
distributed/maited to vendors. In reality, some payments to regular vendors, such as utility
companies and insurance are pre-issued prior to the Board meeting but approved during the
meeting and can be rescinded if necessary. The MPLD does not use Purchase Orders (P.O.s).
Each disbursement must be supported by an invoice, internal voucher/credit card statement or
other evidence supporting the propriety of the disbursement, signed by a staff member making
that purchase. Travel reimbursements are always signed by the staff member, Department
Head and the Executive Director. All signed invoices (1 copy) are kept/retained by the Business
Manager in accordance with the lllinois Archives Records Retention Act. This bill/invoice record
is distributed to the Board at each monthly meeting. Checks are signed by two board officers or
one board officer and either the Executive Director or the Assistant Director. A quorum of the
Board members present at any regular meeting must review the bills and vote on them as a
whole (now presented as a consent agenda) or considered individually and approve them. Itis
the responsibility of the Executive Director to ensure that the signatures are procured from the
appropriate signatories so that payments can be expedited. It is also the responsibility of the
Executive Director to establish adequate controls and safeguards to ensure disbursement of
funds only for proper purposes. Additionally, it is the responsibility of all check signers to ensure
that there is adequate documentation, consistent with this policy, for valid payment of any
checks they sign.

Spending Authorizations

The Executive Director may make expenditures consistent with the Board-approved budget
without further Board approval. However, expenditures which are not within the Board
approved budget must be formally presented and approved by the Board of Trustees during a
regular meeting.

Investment and Cash Management

The purpose of this Investment Policy is to provide a clear and concise statement of the MPLD’s
investment objective, to define the responsibilities of the Board of and any other parties involved
in managing the Library’s investments, and to identify or provide target asset allocations,
permissible investments and diversification requirements. Note that investment of funds is
covered under 75 ILCS 16/30 55.75 as well as the Public Funds Investment Act (PA 87-1277).



6|Page

Investment Selection, Options and Prudence

The overall investment objective of the Library is to maximize the return on invested assets
while minimizing risk and expenses as well as having sufficient liguidity. No investment of funds
will place the Library in a negative cash flow or be placed in an instrument which does not
guarantee a return of at least the total original amount invested. The Library must have enough
funds available to cover 6 (six) months of expenditures without revenue from an outside source
— preferably 1 (one) year. Using a cash management strategy consisting of interest-bearing
accounts and bond investments plus incorporating ‘laddering’ of investments with portfolios
becoming due on differing dates and then re-investing those funds to maximize growth potential
is one strategy that may be used. Additionally, any funds invested must be FDIC-insured,
collateralized or otherwise insured for their full value — no speculative investments or real estate,
other than owned for day-to-day business. The entire investment portfolio shall be diversified in
terms of types of financial instruments and varied/staggered dates of maturity so as to eliminate
risk of loss and strengthen liquidity for possible re-investment or use. Additionally, on an annual
basis, the Board will review the nature and purpose of all investments and re-evaluate them.

Diversification

Except for monies set aside for operating expenses, the Board may invest in any of the
following types of investment instruments:

1) Interest bearing savings accounts; certificates of deposit, money market accounts and other
investments constituting direct obligations of any bank that is FDIC or SIPC insured.

2) Direct obligations of the federal government and any agencies thereof with maturities of (1)
one year or less;

3) Hlinois Funds;

4) Other municipal bond funds or funds presented in a ladder fashion with preset maturity dates
utilizing either a roll-over, roll-into, or ‘cash-out’ option.

5) Some stock funds and mutual funds may be considered as options if they are easily
convertible to cash and do not carry high agent fees.

6) Investments shall be made with the judgment and care under the circumstances then
prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management
of their own investment assets considering the probably preservation of capital as well as the
potential income. This ‘prudent person’ standard shall be used by the Executive Director and
the Board in all investment decisions for the Library.

Internal Controls and Reporting

Working with the Business Manager and the Auditors, the Executive Director shall establish a
system of internal controls, documented in writing, which will prevent losses of public funds
arising from fraud, employee error, misrepresentation by third parties, unanticipated changes in
financial markets, or imprudent actions by authorized investment officers. Reporting and
internal controls exist using different audit firms than our accounting firm and performing through
annual audits. The Business Manager will complete having separate annual audits for regular
financials and IMRF {(or as required by ILCS or GASB). The Board will also carry
comprehensive liability insurance and officers bonds for theft and mis-use of funds. The
Executive Director will develop comprehensive procedures for financial review, reviewing all
funds/budget at least twice (2x) per year.



7|Page

Ethics and Conflicts of Interest

Authorized investment officers of the Library and employees in policy-making positions shall
refrain from personal business activity that could conflict, or give the appearance of a conflict
with proper execution of the. investment program, or which could impair their ability to make
impartial investment decisions. Such individuals shall disclose to the Library any material
financial interests in financial institutions which conduct business with the Library, and they shall
further disclose any personal financial investment positions that could be related to the
performance of the investment portfolio. In addition, such individuals shall subordinate their
personal investment transactions to those of the investment portfolio, particularly with regard to
the time of purchases and sales.

Approved and adopted by the McHenry Public Library Board on

yes no abstain




PRESS RELEASE

For immediate release —April 4, 2018, 2018
Contact: Kathy Lambert, Public Relations Manager
(815) 385-0036, Ext. 301

McHenry Public Library Announces New Online Catalog/Patron Account System

McHenry, IL - From April 14-17, the McHenry Public Library and the other 23 libraries in its consortium will migrate to
a new online catalog/patron account system. The new catalog is designed for a faster, easier browsing experience and was
designed for all devices, including tablets and smartphones.

McHenry Library patrons will be able to receive notifications about items due and items on hold via text message in
addition to email or phone. Items will be automatically renewed a maximum of two times if there are no holds for that
items, and patrons can pick up their items at any of the 24 member libraries, not just their home library. Patrons’
passwords will be the same but must be entered in all caps in the new system.

Patrons who have saved their checkout history and/or reading lists have the option to save them, as they will not transfer
to the new system. Detailed instructions are on the library’s website (www.mchenrylibrary.org), or patrons can call the
library for help at the number below.

Because the system will be down from April 14 through thel6th, patrons will not have access to their online accounts, so
they won’t be able to place holds, renew items or pay fines. Patrons can still check out items during the downtime, but
they’ll need their valid library card with them -- staff won't be able to look them up in the system. The self-checkout
kiosks will be down and the library won’t be issuing new library cards during the downtime.

Items due during the downtime may be returned, but will not be checked in until after the new system is live on April 17, -
so they’1l remain on patron’s accounts, but they will not incur late fees.

The catalog may not be up to date during the down time, so feel free to call the library about item availability. During the
downtime, patrons can also use their library cards at nearby libraries outside our consortium — River East, Johnsburg and
Woodstock.

Another project the library is working on to improve service is a new item identification system that will make checking

out and returning itermns easier. New self-check stations will allow for paying fines with a credit/debit card and checking
out multiple items at the same time.

A new state-of-the-art return system at the library’s drive-up window will allow items to be taken off patrons’ accounts
instantly —- just load them one at a time! Watch for this in May.

For more information, visit www.mchenrylibrary.org or call 815-385-0036. The library is located at 809 Front St. (Route
.

i



lin; Declan MeLaughtin, Joshua Lambert, Nichiod
and Nancy Schietzelt, - ~

to-find- -
comedy
il o
21, and -
lults;

1 Www,

18-5300.

m State -
h River:
1Jes 6
hend of
culars
hird

for

org.
ry
AcHen-
eficans
l-ygu- -
sand
2200;
nt

g .
tage, -
rti-
1Z2and -
00K.”
i/
hion

ystal.

ilent -
$46
10
Sor

- Library: “Stronger,” McHenry Public -

Yl Senlorservicesassocorg. e
-Lto3p.m. - Free Movies @ Your ™\

Library, 809 Front St., McHenry, A victim of
the Boston Marathon bombing 12013 help
the police track down thekillers: Rated R (11
min.), For ages 18 and older, Frea formatioh
15-385-0036 or www.mehgnrylibrary.org

337-9068 or www.foxvalleyracketeers.org.
- * 2to 3p.m.~ Read, Design, Succeed

 with Chris McBrien, Woodstock Public .

Library, 414 W, Judd St, Woodstock, Fea- _
turing Chris McBrien, the Magic Storyteller.,
For childfen age 2 and older. Registration
required. Information: 815:338-0542 or
www;w‘oodstoc_kp‘ﬁibricfibrar‘y.‘ofg. ) o
*3 p:m.- Bethany Arts Series Presents
Mark Kroos, Bethany Lutheran Church, 76

W. Crystal Lake Ave.; Crysta
infiuence ffom folk, Celtic, indie and Bven
punk rock, Kroos nas developad hisown

or www.bethanyl¢.com. A

* 3 p.m. - Sessions Jazz Quartet,
McHenry County College Luecht Conference
Center, 8300 Route 14, Crystal Lake. Planist
Al Skaronea réturns with quartet members .

Bill Toalson on trumpet, Charlie Rigg on bass -

and Brad.Skaronea on.drums. A reception to

foliow; Free, Information: Michael Hillstrom, -

815-479-7814 or www.mchenry.edu/music.

‘April 9

*8:30to9am. ~ Walk With Ease,
Walmart, 21101 McGuire Road, Harvard,
Hosted by the Harvard Community Senigr -

Center. Meets every Monday morning by the

phatmacy. Free: information: 815-943-2740
or glenda.stewart@harvardseniorcenter.org.
*1p.m. - McHenry Senior Citizens

3703 N. Richmiond Road, Johnshurg. Enjoy

\ . Coffee and sweets will bi served. Visi ors

e

wing.-

edge to the acoustic guitar. A freg-wilf offer- \
ing will be taker. Information: 815-459:2670

- Chief, W;m_dst_qck Fonce

 Algonquin, William Pack returns to celebrate

- en of Wonder) Group Meeting,

hornas Salvia, Will Salvia, Melissa Safvia, f{ -

Club meeting, McHehry Towriship Hall

the miisic and riagic of Kevin Sarwick,

\ welcome. Inforciation:

1 and7pm.-§

Woodstock Theatré, 209 Main St,
. Cost: $8 evening show, $6 mat- -
nfors, Information: 815:338-8555

*2to 3pim. - Yoga; Harvaid Community
Senior Center, 6817 Harvard Hills Road, Har-
vard. Cost: $2 for membits, $3 for nonmem-
bers. Information: 815-943-2740;: .

* 6:30t0 7:45 pm. ~ General Store-y -
Time, General Store, 4409 Gregnwood Road;
Greenwood, All ages. Hosted by e Wood-
stock PublieHbrary-TommttoneB15-338:

#42 or www.woodstockpubliclibrary.org.
* 710 8:30 p.m. = Contemporary Book
Discussion Group, McHenry Public Library,
‘809 Ffont St., McHenry. “The Shack” by
William Paul Young. For ages 18 and alder,
tee. Information: 815-385-0036 or www,
mehegeylibrary.org. T S

By, - Coffee with the _
DEpartment, 656
Lake Ave., Woodstock. Guest speaker: Lee -
Roupas, who will discuss the Beverage a-
Alcohol Sellers and Servers Education and
Training program he.manages for the Ilfinois ,
Liquor Contral Commission, Information:
815-338-6787. . . .

* 7 to 8 pm. - Happy 200th Birthday,
lliinois, Algonquin Area Public Library. District
Eastgate Branch Library, 115 Eastgate.Drive,

*7 10,8736

fwo™

raus:

the bicentenniai of llinois with one part. = fU8."
history, one part storytelling; and one part’ §-Om
trivia game with prizes. Free: Registration _
required. Information: 847-458-3144 or Ll_ake-
www.aapld.org.

Apiil13

ma-
. Cary, -

ibrary; -

4 CLPL cardholders only. Registration

8 required. nformation; 815-459-

1687 or www.clplorg.

* 610 9 p.m. - Bridge Club,
Kraus Senior Center, 441 W. Main
' St,, Cary. Free. Information: 847-
639-818,. 0
- *+6:30.to 8 p.m, - WOW (Wom-

Unity Spiritual Céiter of Woodstock,

Org.

- #4Tt68:30 p.m. - The Réal

Cost of Home Ownershi

- McHenry Publig Li
St MoHarr. Loat

-~10to11:30 am, - Cloud:

- Storage Baslcs, Crystal Lake - . ..
Public Library, 126 W. Paddock St., - |
+- Crystaf Lake, Registration required, |
-+ Information: 815:459-1687 or ST |

www.clpl.org. o

" +10am.to1230pm. - Diabes |

tes sef-management work-
shop, Harvard Senior Center, 6817
Harvard Hills Road, Harvard. The

.+ free six-week program will focus
. onimproving physical activity; self -
¢« - care, nutrition and more. A weekly *
light lunich will be provided by the
.- Fulf Cirele Foundation. Open to - _
adults with diabetes.or pre-diabetes

or caregivers, Registration required.

- Free. information: 815-334-4580 or

www.medhinfo. -
*6t0.8p.i. = Family Game
Night, Grand Oaks Recreation.
Center, 1401 W: Roiite 176, Crystal -
Lake. Pizza, drinks arid desseért will -

~ be served; Open to ages 4 through -
-10 with parent; Cost: $12a person,

' Information: 815:459-0680 or
: - Www.crystalfakeparks.org.

0 . LR . . . LN

Y ———




Ma

that this linen centennial

nry'huu,nty'uastqﬁcjal'Suciety's sixth annu

itk and Sue Richmond of Algonquin meet with appraiser Jim Me
i al Antiques Appraisal Day on Fab,
with13 hand-sewn__;;t‘a‘rs..— was

flag - 8 feet long

iiirié“#ritiqne,' McHen-
, 500 Russél
ormation: jmrohn@

ash b'“ﬂo' Héwar d.
r Center, 6817 Harvard Hills
Cost: $5 to $8. Information:

1a.steWart’@har‘yar_d_seniorqente_r.org.e
Moll am. - Memory Café, Kraus Sanio
3, 441W. Main St, Cary, For care péttner

eople with memory problems such as

: Sponsored by Best Care,

Lois Fox, 815-382-

Photmail.com. Snag Tl Free. Trommation; '815-@9- .
M. - Lynda Clayton Resto- 687 or www.clpl.org, , \
ynda Clayton Conservati * 60 7 p.m. - Hop Into Spring Family ingq{
Waltshire Lane; McHaiiry, Dre McHenry Public Library, 809 Front St., McHenry.
weathet; Freg, Information: 815-337.9 Special round for children, All adults playing must/
mmons@consérvemb.org. ™ beaccompanied by a child, Free. Information; 815-
lo 10:30 a,m, - ChildSpace Story- 385-0036 or www.mchenrylibrary.org,
Woodstock Public Library, 414 W. Judd +6to7pm- Build#!-Club, Rarvard
odstock, For children ages 2 and 3, Diggins Library, 900 E. Mckinley St., Harvard.
ation reqyired..Woodstock Public Library  For students in

Iders only, Information: 815-338-0542 or
roods‘tockj'aub!iclib‘rary.org.

ay of fhe month. RSVP ¢
Crystal Lake. For students in grades six to 12,

Registration required. Free, Information: 815-
459-1687 or www.clpl.org,

el

n i ft) new Lions
i d are (front row, frqm left) ne
grll:(:::l?l'fack row, from left) Lions Ron Jackson,

-+ *Noon to 2:30 p.m, - Wednesday M atinee:
“Wonder,” Crystal Lake Public Library, 126 W,
Paddock St,, Crystal Lake. Bring lunch, Rated PG
Free. Information: 815-459-1687 or www.clpi.org;

*1t03 p.m. - Spring break movie mati- -
nees, Harvard Diggins Library, 900 E. McKinley
St, Harvard, Continues 163 P:m. through March
29. Schedule: March 28, “Wonder"; and March
25, “Coco.” All films are rated PG, No registration
required. Snacks welcome, Free, Information;
815-942:4671 ot www.harvard-diggins.org,

* 210 4 p.mi. - Movie: “Coco,” Woodstock

Public Library, 414 W, Judd St, Woodlstock. -
Rated PG. Free: Information: 815- 0542 0r
WWWw. ublichibrary.of

*2to4 pm. - Game On!, McHenry Public Library)
809 Front St, MeHenry. For students in grades four |
to eight. Featuring games such as Wii and Xbox
One, board games and puzzles, Frae, information;
36 or www.mchenrylibrary, ’
*3:30to5pm= | S.

, arty,
rystal Lake Public Library, 126 W. Paddock St,

i

| open for 21st annual Trivia Bee

g open for The Literacy Connecti9;1{)’s znllst
be Fundraiser from 9:30 a.m. to 121;:1 0 nI:.ber
4 Victoria Casino in Elgin. Four-m mber
ote in three rounds of trivia for prizes,

ing rights. Individuals, groups, or businesses

i d a cash bar.
' t will feature _ratﬂes and a ‘
izg‘gggg?ee is $400 and is tax deductible. To

ww.elginliteracy.org/events/trivia-bee-2018.

t.
ission for the andience on th_e day qf tI%e %rleen
mc:Srtunities are available. For mc}usxotrilol:: the
gnd pre-event publicity, team 'reg__lst‘ac onand
be received by April 6. Tl'_ne Literacy t-fl):sns et
plunteer literacy services in communt
Cary, Huntley and Lake in the Hills.

s T e

ST L

913;;?1 or www.harvard-diggins.org.
+ 2 to 3:30 p.m. - Tween D.LY.: No Sel’; "
Fahric Phone or Tablet Case, McHenry fub
fic Library, 809 Front St., Mc_Henry. F??g 59-r3036
four to eight. Free, Information: B15-
.mchenrylibrary.org.
or-wrs:so p.m. - “Joseph Mc(:arthy,';‘ X
McHenry Public Libra{fy&_sog Z:aosn:\ll itc.:.at'lt;:w ewLy(;
fessor Gary Midkiff discus W

Ec:geetsﬁe wave of American fears of communism

preschool through fifth grade,

klessly and

1950 to 1954. McCarthy rec J

frll‘.lﬂtl::lessly attempted to destrlogr t_he ;ezs::ﬂg;:s

ics, politicians, -

and careers of academics, politicia ral
il tration required.

ers and rhilitary leaders. Regis

Free. Information; 815-385-0036 or www.

mchenrylibrary.org.




8 Age: 6 )
- Birth date: April .

| 'tranon requrred CLPLcal

‘ma-
am,

w

Jthe

740

- Seniort _
. vard. Cost? $2%or members, $3for nonmem-_
" bers; Information; 815-943-2740 or glenda.

15- 4591687 or www, clpi ofg:
noon - Nature Play Open. .

a
"stal Lake. Parents and tots
vited to play W|th nature

ree fo n_ty re

s -nonresndents ‘Informaﬂon 15- 479-5779 or
d

; 0036 or www mchenryhhrary org. -
+2t03p. m.= 'loga Harvard Communlty

stewart@harvardsenrorcenter prg.

© "+ 3p.m. - “From Our Own Back Yard: A
ad.

Woman Empowered,” McHenry County:
Historical Society Museurn, 6422 Main St.,

Union, A McHenry County: Sprmg Sampter Se-

“ries program presented by Craig Pfanikuche.
* Lillian Donovan; a Harvard resident, befnend-
ed President Franklin Delano Roosevelt in--
1593, whille they.were both struggimg with
the effec 08

815 923-2267‘0

or]y.org. o
. Continued on page 18

' QI07 “TE Udley ‘ﬁaprn;és ‘. uroo'p[eraHMN /iprei:a"H 1SOMYLION ‘-5301

t nCenter. 02

? Sp
nformation: 315‘385-

10. Informatlon

THALIUTE CLD-SIZ 100 UL WYL LU

+10:30 to 11 a.m. - Books and Bahies
Storytlme, Woodstock Public'Library,
414 W, Judd St., Woodstock Ages 6 months
to 23 months, wrth caregivers. Woodstock
Public Library cardholde y. Registration
required. Information: 815:338- 0542 or
wWww, woodstockpublrchbrary orgs

*1lam. to. z p.m. - My little Pony' Tarls

: Front St McHenry Atabletop role playmg
- game,, For grades 4t0 8. Free; Inforrnation
© B15:385- 0036 or www. mchenryhbrary org
+116 3 p.m. - Spring bireak movie-
matlnees Harvard Drggms Lrbrary, 900

_ March 28, “Wonder"; and March 29‘ "Coco "
Allfilms are rated PG, No registration re-
- quired; Snacks welcome. Free.] :
815-942:4671 or www. harvard dlggrns‘org
- *1to2 pm. ~ Escape Room; Star Wars,
Crystal Lake Public Library, 126 W. Paddock
St,, Crystal Lake For studentsin grades SiX to
el Regrstratlon reqmred Free. Informa'non
- | - B15:459- 1687 or www.clplorg. -
e 3to4pim. - Story 00 Sorenoe
" Woodstock Publi leraj' _j414W Judd St,

3 to 4 pm;, - Teen Craftemoon.' :
Stuffed Animal Taxrdermy, McHenry Pub--

Venturrng Ranger Aw / _ I|c lerary, 809 Front St McHenry For grades

BSA Wirth: also is. an .

: -530t0730pm
o « legos, Harvard Digginis I.rbrary, 900 E:Me

IBy-St,_l-Larlard For studonts__m_grad SiX to
12 Play wrthTegos and watch Lego. Star Wars.
ol Frie :

March27
' -Qam toSp,m -MRPS

X a‘.m —Palama Party. o
McHenry Publrc lerary, 9F ey

-7t0830pm - H artofll' eless-
ess: A publie forum, Woodstock Public -
brary, 414 W. Judd St “Woodstock: Panel
iscussion. featunng Mayor Brian Sager, -
 MHoine of the Sparrow s Barbara lehl, McHenry
. County Housing Authority's Sue Rose;
Turning Point’s Mike Neumann and McHen-

ry County Mental Héalth Board's Denise™

* Bowman; Fres: Information: 815°338- 0542 or

T WWW. woodstockpubllcllbrary org

adult Free Informatron 815 385 0036, 0r
W, mchenryhbrary org., . . d
Lto 11:30 am. - Engllsh Conversdtion
Club/Va foodstock
Public. L|brary, 414 W. Judd St Woodstock
 Information: 815- 338 0542 o WWW, wood-
stockpublicllbrary org.

l

1

. COntinuetI on.p_age 17




inued from page 15

um, tolpm. - Buffet

h, Polish Legion of American

ns Post 188, 1304 Park St.,

1y, Hosted by the Ladies Aux-

Proceeds benefit hospitalized -
yst: $10-peuikgind $5

18 and older: Queen Victoria
eg up an unlikely friendship
Ind n clerk named

ra

prnation: 407-580-6415 of 815-
1-5049. AR
'2to 5 p.m. - Charity Meat_
ffle; Riverside Ppb,-i&ZE’_RoUte :
B;Crystal Lake. Meat raffle to

000 Ruth Road, Huntley.
641!

anefit TLS Veterans {Transforming ‘
ves Through Service 10 Veterans). -

ickets: §5 for six or $1 gach. Max- - F ‘
- “istration required. Free. Information:

num of 10 rounds. Information:

» $:30to 10am. - Bahytime, .
Crystal Lake Public Library, 126
W. Paddock St., Crystal Lake.

From birth to 17 months old, with
aduit, Registration tequired, CLPL
cardholders only. Free. Information:
815-459:1687:0 wivw.clpl.org:

«10am.and 7 p.mi - The A, B,C
and D's of Medicare educational
seminar, Crystal Lake Public Library,
‘ ' stal Lake.

&B, Supple-

rug), Medicare Advantage, th
cpsts and how they Info

evolution genealo- Ty
hop, Huntley Area Public  cami

oime, first-se

onafirst-come, first
sared by the Offic

Spo

“Month Committee. Inform
-wwq\[-.mph'e_nry.edwwom
+10:30 to 1l am.

126 W. Paddock St, Crystal Lake.

815-459—1687..orf;WwW.clqurg. -

ental lnsur'ancé’."Eart-'D (Prescription

tural Affairs and the Women's History

- Family Sto-
rytime, Crystal Lake:Public Library,

From birth to age 5, with adult. Reg-

« 3:45t0 515 pm. - Drop-in LEGO
Monday, Crystal Lake Public Library,
126 W, Paddock St Crystal Lake.

© Ages 4 and older. Free. Information:
815-459-1687 o www.clpl.org.
+6:30 to 7:30 p.m. - General

Store:y Time, Greenwood Gen- -
eral Store, 4409 Greenwood Road,
Greenwood. Hosted by Woodstock
Publi¢ Library. All ages. information:
815-338-0542 or www.woodstock-
publiclibrary.org. -

.+ 6:30 pm. - Crystal Lake Lions
Club meeting, The Cottage, 6 E.
‘Crystal Lake-Ave., Crystal Lake, - - -
Gurest speaker: Philfip Keith of Knot-
{yman Yoga._information:‘81_5-382-' :
2436 or.yh staltaKENOTS.Og,

cil

Were Brothers” by -
n. Ages 18 and older.
15-385-0036 or
ry.org

www.mchenrylibrary.org.
07 to 830 pi-Eoffee with
the L jef, McHenry County '
Correcti_onal Facility, 2200 N.
_Seminary Ave., Woodstock. Sqt.

Stephen Laudick-will lead a tour of

Facility. Reservations required.
information: §15-338-6781.

15-444-6200-0r wiww tlsveterans. :

ro/thied-party-events. .~ = Noon to 2p.m. - Wear a Hijabh - March13 B

+ 2 to'd pim.,~ Board Game café, for the Day panel discussion, -+ 9am.to5pm. - AARP Senior

rystal Lake Public Library, 26 W. McHenry County:College, 8900 tax appointments, Woodstock -
Roiite 14, Crystal'Lake. Asafeplace  Public Library, M4W, uddSt, -

?addock St., Crystal Lake. Coffee, tea
and-reats provided, Free. informa-
ton: _8_15f459-1687- or www.clplorg.

Mar'eh 12 o " adu/women. o
+land7 pam.- Second Monday ~ ° 1pim. - McHenry Senior
Film Club, Woodstock Theatre, 209 “Citizens Club meeting, McHenry

Main 5t., Woodstock."The Square.”
A satirical comedy setin arenowned
museum where an artist exhibits an

reant to promote altru- 3wt
the musical “South Pacific™ on April
make reserva-

installation
ism. Cost: $6 matinee,

_-www.c\assiccinemas.com. .
. §:30 to 9 a.m. - Walk With
Ease, Walmart, 21101 McGuire -

Road, Harvard. Hosted by the

Harvard Community senior Center.
Free: Infor-
mation: 815-943-2740 of glenda.

stewart@harvardseni_ufcenter;qrg.

Meet by the pharmacy.

+§ am. - Fox Hills Music

Teachers Association meet-~
Congregational'(}hurch

ing, First

of Crystal Lake, 461 Pierson St.,

Crystal Lake. Guest speaker Pamela
Becker will present “Music and the
Brain: The Impact of Neuroscience
on the Musician.” information: 815-
814-3736 or wivw foxhillsmta.org.

o ASma

$8 evening
" show. information: 815-338-8555 or

to explote women's ¢hoice, faith

and thelr commitrrient to cultural
. yalues: Information: www.mchenry.

Township Hall, 3703 N. Richmond

‘Road, Johnsburg. Featuting Neil

76 at Drury Lane can

for nonmembers. Free, Information: . tion':-815-459a1687 or www.elplorg..
815-701-4846. S .. «10tollam. - I'rese_hon| Sto-
2 tod pm. = Coloring for _rytime, Harvard Diggins Library, -

.126'W. Paddock St Crystal Lake. 3 to 5, with adult.
-~ Light snacks, Free. fnformation: 815- ‘quired. Free. information: 815-943-. -
* 459-1687 or wwweiphorg: - = - 46T1or www.harvard—diggins.cjrg_.
v 2t03p.m.~ Chalr yoga, Havard - 10 to 11 am, - Healthy living:

¢ommurity Senior Center, 6817

Harvard Hills Road; Harvard. Cost: $2
$3for honmembers.
Inforrmation: 815-943-2740 of glenda.
stewart@harvardsen'l_orcenter.org.

- Heart Health
Screenings, McHenry County
nemartment of Health; 2200 N.

for members and

«3to b p.m.

Diamond musi'c-performed by Jeff
silberfine, Those who want 10 se€

tions during this meeting. The day _
© trip costs $73 for merbers and $80  Ages 3 arid 4%, with adult. informa-~°

adults, Crystal Lake Public Libraty,

- Woodsteck. Appointments: 815-
344-3555.information: Www.
'woodétockpub|ic|ibrary;0rg.
"+ 9:30 am. - Volunteer Days,

‘Moraine Hills $tate Park, 1510 S. River ™

Road, McHenry. Dress for the weath-
er. Bring work gloves and drinking

water. Meet at 9:30 am. inthe area -

past the Northern Woods Playground.
lnfprm'ation:‘815-'344-._1294. o
33010 10 am. - Préschool Sto-

 126W. Paddock St,, Crystal Leke.

900
Registration re-

Stocking the pantry, Centegra
Health Bridge Fitness Ceriter-Crystal
Lake, 200 E. Congress Parkway,

Mastets,
institute registered diatitian, Walk-

ins welcome based on availability.

Registration is urged. Free. informa-
= AR D3AT A thC'Hl".En-

"B Free. Information; 815-385-0036 or viww

It

- Contemporary™,| |
ok DISC ) Group; McHenry .-
¢ Library;809 Front St,, McHen- -

R

the McHenry County Correctional |

1 414 W.Judd St., Wdﬁd_S'E_OCk. Informiation:

rytime; Crystal Lake Public Library,

E. McKinley St., Harvard. Ages

Crystal Lake. Guést speaker: Heather ! .
aCentegra Healthy Living. - ‘

) s ya//.\ ‘ :
»7to8:30p.m. - Swedeni:erg Valkom-
m

/men till Swedenberg, McHenry Public

 / Library, 809 Front St., McHe
. r ~ M n * E
Swgdlsh commUnity (1850-19?:0) :ﬁmtage
anIntegral part of Nunda and Crystal Lake

¥ mchenrylibrary.org.

__,_...-”

+ 8 am. t0 10 a.m. - Meals wi i
- McHenry Courty College, 8900 g:u?:ti?s,
Crystal Lake: Panelists will share what it took
to succeed and rise to the top. Co-sponsored
by the MCC Business Department, Business
ggjtp and Office of Multicultural Affairs, Regis-
i uljc::: J;lL:TEd' Information: www.mclhenry.
+9:30 to 1t am. - Drop-in'tot o .
Grand Oaks Gy, MOLW, Route 176, Cystal
| Lake. Ages 1to 4. Cost: $5.3!nforrr'|ati'o‘n"'815-
% 459-0680 or www.crystallakepérks.orgi:
+9:30am.tol0am. - Big Kid St’orﬁime
Crystal Lake Public tibfary, 126 W. Paddock
§t., Crystal L.ake..Age 4-and older. Informa-
tion: 815-459-1687 or www.clpl.org.
Serllgsarﬂl to nogll-‘-‘ci'eatiié Living
ies: “Irena Sendler: In the Name ¢
Their Mothers,” Woodstotk Oper:ﬂ:ug.::
121 W. Van Buren St,, Woodstock. Présentéti -
by filmmaker Mary Skinner. The dociimen-
tary tells the story of Polish social worker
irena Sendler, who was part of a ¢landestine
network of social workers and ruris workin
Fogether to outwit the Nazis. Fifth lecture ?
in the Creative Living Series presentedby
the Woodstock Fine Arts Association Cost:
$25, Information: 708:214-2567 or w:Nw .
wo?qd‘stodkope’r’éhouse_.dor’ﬁ'. o
+ Noon to 2 p.m. - Hispanic Conn i
Group Meeting, Woodstock Public fi‘l:)tr:::s

1 B15-338-0542 or Wwiy ockpublic]
brary.org. T dSWGkPU >

3 ‘tdll:30D.m.-Pi'zza&-i'a Teer
30 p.m. ges Teen

/:Iﬁ:{k Group, Jimanos Pizz2, 366 Bank Drive,

ln?orrelra?i"o nUgsl {u;s;é)y' Scott Westerfeld, Free.
, : 815-385-0036

_library.org. oo Wwa.mcthn'

Fuutwer s Achigve Fotwear- Acieve Futwear o
rnndal Season

pod
3]
=
o
=
[
Tt
[=]
2
mw
1)
2
=
[+]
=
D
-
il
m
[~}
g
I
o
3
L ]
{)
=
<B
5
117
puan}



62 afed * SWIH!J.VW 394 ‘Afl poop TededsmaN ‘UL ysTuB( VI
B PUY 'So[qe) PUE Sayouaq eI 0} a(q 0} spi
"SpIEOqYSED pasn aq weo ey} Jadedsmau pedind. :
a[qtssod .10; unuap de1osjo mo ol .IO 11'10 apem l{ouq 1 'qzum Supuste - ays ‘Aer

e itara, o e kI

* « Continued from page 16 Hebron

« Noon to 2 p.m. - Movie/discussion:’

“The Carrion Vine,” McHenry County
College, 8900 Route 14, Crystal Lake, The
true story about Erane Scully's capture by
the Russians and life in a Siberian tabior camp
narrated by the 91-year-old Scully. Sponsored
by the Women's History | Month Committee
and the Office of Multicultural Affairs. Infor-
mation: www.mehenry. edu/events/wewev- ‘
entdes, asp7eventld=19005: .. . -

» 1:30.to 2:30 p.m. - EZ Sitting t'.ountry
Line Dance, Grand. Oaks-Recreatior Center,
1401 W. Route 176, Crystal Lake. Dance to
music while sitting o holding on to a chair.
Sponsored by the Crystal Lake Park District: - [

- Cost: $10. Registrat op.and informations 815:3 | - |
- orwwwcrysta a
43010 5:30 p.. -S‘lEMMeaSto-
ty, McHenry Public Library, 809 Front St.,
McHenry,“Sam-and Dave Dig a Hole” by Jon
Klassen and Mac Barnett, then create a maze
out of Legos to help Sam and Dave find their *
real treasure; For students in kindérgarten to
first grade, Free. Information: 815-385- 0031
or www.mchenrylibrary.org. ‘ :
to7p. m, - Healthy Iwmg Sto
' .rldge ';

Fitness Centar-
: Parkway, Crystal Lake. Learn how to rep[ace :
._snack foofdis with fiistritious foods. Wall

‘B i ! !
H
E McK'nIev st, Harvard: March 21 to hear all 2

T RS AL Aeaebal Laba DihliF |hr;\r\f



| ANNUAL MEETING - St_..P.'aLIII_'s' Episcopal Church in McHenry hosted

‘| County College, 8900 Route 14, Crystal Lake.

' Busliiess Depariment, Business Club and Office

. Lake, Ages L'to 4: Cost: $5. Information: 815--

its 57th annual meeting Jan. 28 at the church, 3706 W. St. Paul Ave. The Rev.

Lori Lowe led parishioners in discussions regarding community outreach and gave the State of the Parish. Church members also celebrated
. the church, hosting two mobite food truck events in 2017. St. Paul’s has hosted nine mobile food truck events since 2015 in partnership with

the Northern lilinois Food Bank. St. Paul’s has distributed food to more than 600 families.
Group Meeting, Wood ic Library, ~
414 W. Judd-$t-Woodstock. Informatiom8l&;

CO M M U N ETY 338-0542 or www.woodstockpubliclibrary.org.
s 3 /" 3:30 10 4:30 pm, - Pizza & Pages Teen
1K /,e" Book Group, Jimanos Pizza, 366 Bank Drive,
: - / McHenry. “Uglies” by Scott Westerfeld, Free.

Information; B15-385-0036 or www.mchenryli-
brary.org. /
“.._* 60 8:30 p.m. - Film Lovers Group, .-
Crystalf:ake Public.Library, 126-W-P4ddock St.,
Crystal Lake. “A Streetcar Named Desire.” Rated
PG. Bring dinner. Free. information: 815-459-
1687 or www.clpl.org.

» 6 to 7:30 p.m. - Track clinie, Briargate
Elementary School, 100 Wulff St., Cary. Hosted
by the Cary Park District. Grades 3 to B. Focus
on sprint, jump, hurdle techniques and drills; the
grip and release of the discus; how to cool down;
and about non-impact strength and conditioning
activities that can prevent injury. Registration
required. Cost: $15 residents, $20 nonresidents.
Information; 847-639-6100, www.carypark.com.

+ 6 or 7 p.m. - Discovery Center's Portable
Planetarium, Harvard Diggins Library, 900 €.
McKinley St., Harvard. Register for one session
and sign up for the Constellation Craft from 5:30
to 7:30 p.m. Free. Information: B15-943-4671 o
www.harvard-diggins.org.

« 5:30 to 7 p.m. - Drop=in Spanish lan-
guage family storytime, Crystal Lake Public
Library, 126 W. Paddock St., Crystal Lake. All
ages, with adult. Free. Information: 815-459-
1687 or www.clpl.org.

« 7:30 p.m. - Marine Corps League,
McHenry County Detachment No. 1009
monthly meeting, McHenry VFW Fox River
Post 4600, 3002 W. Route 120, McHenry.
Free. Information: 847-906-3364 or dboucek@
hotmail.com.

March1s .
"+ 8to 10 am. - Meals with Moms, McHenry

Panilists will share what it took to succeed
and rise to the top. Co-sponsored by the MCC

of Multicultural Affairs. Registration required.
- Information: www.mchenry.edu/women.

« 9;30 a.m. - Volunteer Days, Volo Bog
State Natural Area, 28478 W. Brandenburg
Road, Ingleside. Dress for the weather. Bring
work gloves and drinking water. Meet at 9:30
am; in the Visitor Center. Free. Registration:

815344194, .

* 9:30 to 11 am, - Drop-in tot open gym,

. Grand Oaks Gym, 1401 W. Route 176, Crystal

459-0680 or www.crystallakeparks.org.

» 9:30 to 10 a:m. - Big Kid Storytime,
Crystal Lake Public Library, 126 W. Paddock St.,
Crystal Lake. Age 4 and older: Information; 815-
459-16B7 or www.clplorg.

+ 9:30 to 10.a.m. - Little Ones Storytime,
Crystal Lake Public Library, 126 W. Paddock
St., Crystal Lake. For birth to age 3 with adult.

- Information; 815-459-1687 or www.clpl.org.

»10:30 to 11 a.m, - Family Storytime,
Crystal Lake Public Library, 126 W. Paddock
St,, Crystal Lake. Information: 815-459-1687 or
www.clplorg.

+ Noon to 2 p.m, - Hispanic Connections

Woodstock
Author to talk ahout history

of the French in Hlinois

Come to the Woodstock Public -
Library for a presentation by author
Charles Balesi, who wrotefhe Time
of the French in the Heart ofNorth
America, 1673-1818.” The event will
be from 2 to 3:30 p.m. March 18 in
the downstairs meeting room at the
library, 414 W. Judd St., Woodstock, _

Balesi will present “When Ilinoeis
was Louisiana; The Forgotten French
Face of the Ilinois Bicentennial.” A
question and answer session and book
signing will follow. For information,
call 815-338-0542 or visit www.wood-
stockpubliclibrary.org.

McHenry
Nominees sought for

distinguished alumni award

The McHenry High School Founda-
tion Committee is accepting nomina-
tions for the next McHenry High School
Distinguished Graduate. Nominees
must be graduates of McHenry High
Schooel District 156 for at least 15 years.

Return nominations to the Robert
Q. Swartzloff Center by March 23.
Nomination forms are available at the
Robert Q. Swartzloff Center for Educa-
tional Services, 4716 W. Crystal Lake
Road, McHenry; by visiting www.d156.
org; or the link on Facebook and Twit-
ter. For information, call Superinten-
dent Ryan McTague at 815-385-7900.



planiu

THINGS TO DO
 IN&AROUND
~ McHENRY COUNTY,

ST, PATRICK'S
DAY CONCER
WHEN: 7 p.m. March 144
WHERE: McHenty County Col:

et G, |

8900 Route 14, CrystalLake
COST & INFO: Folowinga.
return performance of Irish
dances from the McNulty Irish,
Dancers, MCC music instruc-
tor Pat Gaughan performs -
traditional lrish favorites, per--
formed with her duet partner..
L. Slavin. Free. Information:
 Michael Hillstrom, 815-479-
7814 or www.mchenry.ed
events. '

WHEN: 1p.m. Ma
WHERE: Crystal L
High School, 45 W. Franklin
St Crystal Lake - =~
COST & INFO: free senior .
‘citizen preview show only pre-
sented by Crystal Lake Central

~ High School. General.audience
March 15 to 18. Call for tickets
or reservations. Information;
815-459-2505, ext. 200, or
www.d155.org/clc. .

- SWEDENB
WHEN: 7 to 8:30 pm. March 14
WHERE: McHenry Public Li-
brary, 809 Front St;, McHenry
COST & INFO: Explore the
Swedish commuinity (1850-
1950) that was an integral part
of Nunda and Crystal Lake: Free.
Information: 815-385-0036 or

www.michenrylibrary.org.

AWARDS - The Fox River Valley Chapter of the N ciety
R Student Awards Reception on Feb. 24. Pictured are DAR members an

National Society Daughters of the Americar
d District |1 Director Pat Holcomb and

n R,eVol:u"tiHr_'t._p‘res'e_i'

' the Good Citizens Class of 2018 winners: Matthew R.Jensen from Huntley High School, Madyson Savele]

sixth-grader Brady Seaburg, Holy Family Acade
Christopher Columbus Essay Contest winner an

2 from Jacobs High School; American History Essay Contest and District Il winners and state fi

my seventh-grader Grant Bytner and Heineman Middle School eighth
d state finalist Megan Dickerson, 10th-grader at Huntley High School;

hth-grade teachi_ar'at St, Thomas.More

 the Outstanding Teacher of American History, Melissa Craig; a seventh-and eig

CALENDAR

March14 .

~+9to11:30am, - Résumé critique, McHen-
fy County Workforce Network, 500 Russel
Court, Woodstock: Free: Information: jmrohn@
comichenryilus. :

» 9:30 o 11:30 a.m. - Cash bingo, Harvard

- Community Senior Center, 6817 Harvard Hills

Road, Harvard. Cost: $5 to $8. Information:-
glencla.stewart@harvardseniorcenter.org.

« 5:30 to 10 am. - Preschool STEM Story-
time, Crystal Lake Public Library, 126 W. Paddock
St, Crystal Lake. Ages 3 to 4. Crystal Lake Public
Library cardholders oniy. Registration required. -
ipformation: 815-459-1687 or www.clplorg.

e 10 2.m. to 1 p.m: - Wolf Oak Woods
 reftoration workday, Wolf 0ak Woods, 8930
Rote 120, Woodstock. Free. Information: 815-

33719502 or zclemmons@conservemc.org.

« 70 to 10:30 a.m. - ChildSpace Storytime,
Wopdstock Public Library, 414 W. Judd 5¢,,
Wobdstock. Ages 2 and 3. Registration required.
Wpodstock Public Library cardholders only.

‘Iiformation: 815-338-0542 or www.woodstock-
ubliclibrary.org.
+ 11 to 11:30 4m. -~ Family Storytime, Wood-

- stock Public Library, 414 W. Judd St., Wood-

stock. All ages: Information: 815-338-0542 or
www.woodstockpubliclibrary.org. - =
~12:30 to 1;30 p.m. - Stampin Up Greeting
Cards, Harvard Community Seénior Center, 6817
Harvard Hills Road, Harvard. Make one-of-a-kind

cards for all occasions. Coffee, tea and sweets .

provided, Cost: $2 members.and $3 nonmem-
bers. information; 815-943-2740 or glenda.
stewart@harvardseniorcenter.org.

+1t6 3 p.m. - Breast Cancer Support
Group of Sun City; Hickory Room of Prairie

Lodge, 12880 Del Webb Bivd,, Huntley. Guest S

speaker is registered nurse Karla Hernandez, a -

certified breast health navigator, and Marianna -

Wolfmeyer, a .I_icenSed'Oncology cotmselor
and chaplain. Cost; Free for Sun City residents,
$2 for community (call ahead). Registration:
Audrey Munger, 847-669-3598.

+ 130 to 5 p.m. - Kid's Crafternoon, o
Harvard Diggins Library, 900 E. McKinley St.,

Harvard. Preschool to fifth grade. Make a spring -
 chick, Registration required. Free. Information:

815-943-4671 or www.harvard-diggins.org. -

+ 410’5 p.m. - World Book Student, Crystal
Lake Public Library, 126 W Paddock St, Crystal
Lake. Grades three to five with parent. Explore
this online tool. CLPL cardholdeis only: Regis-
tration required. Information; 815-459-1687 or
www.clpl.org. :

Have an event to share? Submit your
information online at PlamitNorthiwest.com.
" Photos may be emailed '
to neighbors@nwierald.com.

“McHenry County

Friends of Mo

- Park offering

The Friends of
Park is offering t1
scholarships for ¢
lege who are inte)
environmental ce
live and attend hi

. ry, Kane or Lake
fmum B average:

accredited colleg
" - 'The applicatio

For informatic
an application p2

. friendsofmoraine

Crystal Lake
Toastmaster

- 60th annivel

'Crystal Lake'
No, 2724 will cel¢
versary April 7¢
& Conference Ce
in Crystal Lake.

The club is se
formation for pr
memorabilia to:
lay at §47-899-121
ketm2724@gmai
lake.toastmaste:



3,

- ‘Toe Confirhation class from Ridgefield-C

rystal l.a'ke"l’r'e,sbirteriar_l Church sperit the weekend of Feb. 23 to

25 on a retreat finding ways to become closer with God, The culminating activity was the creation of a prayer roem for church members and
friends during Lent, Pictured (front, from left) are Barb Ferguson, lona Dillon, Blake LeFevre, Samuel Viner, Raechel Sowa; and (back, from left}
Sam Baser, Hayden Sanders, Reegan Conway and Brady Conway. o

i,

. Information: 815-458-1687 or www.clpl.org.

April 5 - :

*8am.to5p.m. ~ Spring Rummage Sale,
Zion Lutheran Church, 4206 W: Elm St., McHen-
ry. Continues from 8 a.m. to 3 p.m. April 6 and
from 8 a.m. to noon April 7. Free. Information:
815-385-0859, Lo

* 9:30 to 10:30 a.m; - La Peesia por His-
panohablantas, Woodstock Public Library,

414 W. Judd St., Woodstock. Ven a aprender - ,

defl National Poetry Month y el poeta Carl
Sandburg. Vamos a leer, escribir y hablar, Usted
no necesita experiencia de escribir antes. Infor-
mation; 815-459-1687 or www.clpl.org.

* 10 am. to2 p.m. - Poker Clusb, Kraus
Senior Center, 441 W, Main St., Cary. Free.
information: 847-639-8118.

*10a.m. to1p.m. - Dominoes Club, Kraus
Senior Center, 441 W. Main St,, Cary. No experi-
ence necessary; learn as you go. Bring a snack.
Free.Information: 847-639-8118.

*10:30 to Lla.m. - Family Storytime,
Crystal Lake Public Library, 126 W. Paddock
St., Crystal Lake. Information: 815-459-1687 or
www.clpl.org.

* 10 to 11:30 a.m. - Memery Cafe, Crystal
Lake Public Libtary, 126 W, Paddock St,, Crystal

' _McHenry County Animal Control and Adop-

and Spanish culture at this drop-in storytime, -
Open to beginners and Spanish speakers. Free.
Information: 815-459-1687 or www.clpl.org.

* 6:30 to 7:30 p.m. - Lego Nights, Wood-
stock Public Library, 414 W. Judd St., Wood-
stock. information: 815-338-0542 or www.
woodstockpubliciibrary.org.

= 6:30 to 7:30 p.m. - Healthy Doses:
“What's Behind Your Back Paim,” Centegra
Health Bridge Fitness Center, 200 E, Congress
Parkway, Crystal Lake. Featuring chiropractor
Dr. Randy David and pain medicine specialist -
Dr. Jing Liang from Centegra Physician Care.
Part of the Healthy Doses series. Registration
requirgd-Fref ommatior=8 7 CENTEER

ri.centegra.org.
* 710 8 p.m. - Mystery Book Discussion_ \
Group, McHenry Public Library, 809 Front St.,
McHenry. Read and discuss “The Suspicions of
Mr. Whicher” by Kate Summerscaie. For ages
18 and older. No registration needed. Free.

Lake. An informal social gathering where per-
sons with memory issues and their care partner
c¢an connect with others in simifar situations,
Co-hosted by Family Alliance. Coffee and
cookies will be available. Registration required.

*2to0 4 p.m. - Low-cost pet vaccines,

tion Center, 100 N. Virginia St., Crystal Lake.
Appointments required. Call 815-459-6222.
Pets must be leashed or in carriers, your pet
requires a muzzle, it must be provided by the
owner and put on before the event. Registra-
tion tags are required by law; registration fees
are separate and required at time of rabies :
vaccination. Discounts for senior residents and
for pets previously spayed or neutered apply.
Cost: $30 for three-year rabies vaccine is $30,
$15 for a one-year vaccine; $15 microchips. ~
Information: 815-459-6222, {

° 330 to 5 p.m. - Drop-in Art Frenzy: : )
Painting to Music, Crystal Lake Public Information: 815-385-0036 or www.mchepefi-
Library, 126 W Paddock St, Crystal Lake. brary.org, ' '
Students in grades three to eight can create a o830 p.m. - BeginningE
new work of art every month. Music will inspire Crystal Lake PUBCTIBTa7Y, 126 W. Paddock
participants’ painting strokes. Information: 815- St., Crystal Lake. Information: 815-459-1687 or
459-1687 or www.clpl.org. www.clpl.org.

* 6 to 9 p.m. - Bridge Club, Kraus Senior * 7 to 9 p.m. - Countyy Quiiters Guild
Center, 441 W, Main St,, Cary, Free, informa- ileeting, Shepherd of the Hills Lutheran
tion: 847-639-8118. : Church, 404 N. Green St., McHenry. Featuring

*6:30to 7 p.m. - Drop-in Spanish fan- wool work. Guest speaker will be Kysa Meek.
guage family storytime, Crystal Lake Public - Cost: $5 for guests or $25 for annual dues.
Library, 126 W. Paddock St., Crystal Lake. All Information: rﬁchenrycountryquilters@gmail.
ages with caregiver. Featuring stories, songs com or www.mchenryquilters.org.

el 2013,



